
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

  

Standards 
Committee 

Date: Friday, 6th July, 2007 

Time: 12.00 p.m. 

Place: 
Committee Room 1, Shirehall, St. 
Peter's Square, Hereford 

Notes: Please note the time, date and venue of 
the meeting. 

For any further information please contact: 

Heather Donaldson, Democratic Services, 
Brockington, 35 Hafod Road, Hereford. 

Tel: 01432 261829; Email: 
hdonaldson@herefordshire.gov.uk 

  
 
County of Herefordshire 
District Council 





COUNTY OF HEREFORDSHIRE DISTRICT COUNCIL 6TH JULY, 2007 
 
 
 

AGENDA 
for the Meeting of the Standards Committee 

 
To: Robert Rogers and David Stevens (Independent Members) 

Councillors John Stone and Beris Williams 
 Richard Gething and John Hardwick (Parish and Town Council Representatives) 
 

  

 Pages 

  
   
1. ELECTION OF CHAIRMAN     
   
 To elect a Chairman for the ensuing year.    
   
2. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE     
   
 To receive apologies for absence.  
   
3. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST     
   
 To receive any declarations of interest by members in respect of items on 

the agenda. 
 

   
4. MINUTES     
   
 To approve and sign the minutes of the meetings held on 09 March, 13 

April and 11 May, 2007.   
 

   
5. APPLICATIONS FOR DISPENSATIONS RECEIVED FROM TOWN AND 

PARISH COUNCILS   
3 - 4  

   
 To consider any applications for dispensations received from town or 

parish councils.   
 
Wards: County Wide 

 

   
6. MODEL CODE OF CONDUCT   5 - 86  
   
 To consider the attached Model Code of conduct for Local Authorities, and 

supporting documentation, and to make recommendations to Council.   
 
Wards: County Wide 

 

   
7. STANDARDS BOARD FOR ENGLAND - BULLETIN 33   87 - 94  
   
 To note the latest SBE Bulletin.   

 
Wards: County Wide 
 

 

   
8. DATES OF FUTURE MEETINGS     
   
 To note that the Standards Committee’s next meeting will be held at 2.00 

p.m. on Friday 19 October 2007 at Brockington.  Future meeting dates 
are as follows: 
 

• Friday 18 January 2008 at 2.00 p.m. 

• Friday 25 April 2008 at 2.00 p.m. 

 

   



 

EXCLUSION OF THE PUBLIC AND PRESS   
  
In the opinion of the Proper Officer, the following items will not be, or are 
likely not to be, open to the public and press at the time they are 
considered. 
 
RECOMMENDATION: that under section 100(A)(4) of the Local 

Government Act 1972, the public be excluded 
from the meeting for the following items of 
business on the grounds that they involve the 
likely disclosure of exempt information as 
defined in Schedule 12(A) of the Act, as 
indicated below 

 

  
9. DETERMINATIONS BY THE STANDARDS BOARD FOR ENGLAND   95 - 98  
   
 To update the Committee about determinations by the Standards Board for 

England concerning Herefordshire.   
 
Wards: County Wide 
 
This item discloses information which is subject to an obligation or 
confidentiality.   

 

   
10. APPLICATION FOR A DISPENSATION RECEIVED FROM A TOWN OR 

PARISH COUNCIL   
99 - 102  

   
 To consider an application for a dispensation received from a town or 

parish council.   
 
Wards: County Wide 
 
This item discloses information which is subject to an obligation or 
confidentiality.   
 

 

   



Your Rights to Information and Attendance at Meetings  
 
 
YOU HAVE A RIGHT TO:- 
 
 

• Attend all Council, Cabinet, Committee and Sub-Committee meetings unless the 
business to be transacted would disclose ‘confidential’ or ‘exempt information’. 

• Inspect agenda and public reports at least three clear days before the date of the 
meeting. 

• Inspect minutes of the Council and all Committees and Sub-Committees and written 
statements of decisions taken by the Cabinet or individual Cabinet Members for up to 
six years following a meeting. 

• Inspect background papers used in the preparation of public reports for a period of up 
to four years from the date of the meeting.  A list of the background papers to a report 
is given at the end of each report.  A background paper is a document on which the 
officer has relied in writing the report and which otherwise is not available to the 
public. 

• Access to a public register stating the names, addresses and wards of all Councillors 
with details of the membership of Cabinet and all Committees and Sub-Committees. 

• Have a reasonable number of copies of agenda and reports (relating to items to be 
considered in public) made available to the public attending meetings of the Council, 
Cabinet, Committees and Sub-Committees. 

• Have access to a list specifying those powers on which the Council have delegated 
decision making to their officers identifying the officers concerned by title. 

• Copy any of the documents mentioned above to which you have a right of access, 
subject to a reasonable charge. 

• Access to this summary of your rights as members of the public to attend meetings of 
the Council, Cabinet, its Committees and Sub-Committees and to inspect and copy 
documents. 

• Access to this summary of your rights as members of the public to attend meetings of 
the Council, Cabinet, Committees and Sub-Committees and to inspect and copy 
documents. 

 

 

 

1



 

Please Note: 

Agenda and individual reports can be made available in large print.  Please contact the 
officer named on the front cover of this agenda in advance of the meeting who will be 
pleased to deal with your request. 

The meeting venue is accessible for visitors in wheelchairs. 

A public telephone is available in the reception area. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
If you have any questions about this agenda, how the Council works or would like more 
information or wish to exercise your rights to access the information described above, 
you may do so either by telephoning officer named on the front cover of this agenda or 
by visiting in person during office hours (8.45 a.m. - 5.00 p.m. Monday - Thursday and 
8.45 a.m. - 4.45 p.m. Friday) at the Council Offices, Brockington, 35 Hafod Road, 
Hereford. 

2



STANDARDS COMMITTEE 06 JULY 2007 

Further information on the subject of this report is available from Alan McLaughlin, Head of Legal and 

Democratic Services on 01432 260200 

 

 

DISPENSATIONS TO TOWN AND PARISH COUNCILS 

Report By: Head of Legal and Democratic Services 

 

 

Purpose 

1. To consider two applications for dispensations received from Bartestree and 
Lugwardine Parish Council, and Holme Lacy Parish Council.   

Financial Implications 

2. None 

Background 

3. Under the Code of Conduct, town and parish councillors are prohibited from 
participating in matters in which they have a prejudicial interest.  In the normal 
course of events this would not prejudice the proper working of their councils.  
There are instances, however, when the number of councillors who would be 
prohibited from participating will impede the transaction of business.  

4. The Relevant Authorities (Standards Committee) (Dispensations) Regulations 
2002 give Standards Committees the power to grant dispensations in 
circumstances where the number of councillors that are prohibited from 
participating in the business of the council exceeds 50% of those who are 
entitled or required to participate.   

5. In each case, the councillor must request the dispensation in writing, setting 
out why the dispensation is desirable.  The Standards Committee must then 
decide whether, in all the circumstances, it is appropriate to grant the 
dispensation.   

6. The 2002 regulations also specify two circumstances where a dispensation 
may not be granted; first, in respect of participation in business conducted 
more than 4 years after the date on which the dispensation was granted; and, 
secondly in relation to prejudicial interests concerning attendance at a scrutiny 
committee meeting which is scrutinising the activity of any other committee to 
which the member belongs, or for executive members in relation to their own 
portfolios.   

AGENDA ITEM 5

3



STANDARDS COMMITTEE 06 JULY 2007 

Further information on the subject of this report is available from Alan McLaughlin, Head of Legal and 

Democratic Services on 01432 260200 

 

 

Bartestree and Lugwardine Parish Council 

7. All eleven members of Bartestree and Lugwardine Parish Council have 
requested a dispensation in relation to Bartestree Village Hall, lasting for the 
maximum period of four years.  Their quorum is six.  The eleven members 
are: 

Mr. Mike Wilson    Mr. Ray Lawley 
Mr. Alan Wood    Mr. Nigel Shore 
Mr. Nigel Alexander   Mr. Paul Wargent 
Mr. Geoff Davies   Ms. Kathleen Watkins 
Mr. Mike Greenfield   Mr. Ron Williams 
Ms. Julie Jones 
 

8. All are members of the Village Hall Committee, and the dispensation will 
enable them to discuss village hall matters.   

Holme Lacy Parish Council 

9. Five out of the seven members of Holme Lacy Parish Council have requested 
a dispensation in relation to Holme Lacy Village Hall, lasting for the maximum 
period of four years.  Their quorum is three.  The five members are: 

Ms. Belinda Gwynne 
Mr. Kevin Lofthouse 
Mr. Keith Bishop 
Mr. Trevor Williams 
Mr. Gordon Lawson 

10. All are village hall trustees, and the dispensation will enable them to discuss 
village hall matters.   

RECOMMENDATION 

THAT (a) the Committee grants the eleven members of Bartestree and 
Lugwardine Parish Council named in the report, a 
dispensation in respect of Bartestree Village Hall, and 

 (b) the Committee grants the five members of Holme Lacy 
Parish Council named in the report, a dispensation in 
respect of Holme Lacy Village Hall 

 

BACKGROUND PAPERS 

• Application from the Clerk to Bartestree and Lugwardine Parish Council dated 18 June 2007 

• Application from the Clerk to Holme Lacy Parish Council dated 25 May 2007.   

4



STANDARDS COMMITTEE 06 JULY 2007 
 

Further information on the subject of this report is available from Alan McLaughlin,  
Head of Legal and Democratic Services on (01432) 260200 

 

 

 

 NEW MODEL CODE OF CONDUCT 

Report By: Head of Legal and Democratic Services 

 

Purpose 

1. This report asks Members to consider the new Model Code of Conduct made on 4 
April 2007 which came into force on 3 May 2007.  

2. This report seeks Members’ views in relation to Parish and Town Councils in 
Herefordshire in relation to the adoption of the Code of Conduct by them.  

3. The report seeks Members’ views in relation to a number of matters arising out of the 
adoption of the new Model Code of Conduct.  

4. This report also seeks Members’ view on the proposed addition to the mandatory 
Code of Conduct. 

5. The Report seeks the recommendation of Members to the Council Meeting on 27th 
July 2007 to adopt the new Model Code of Conduct.  

Financial Implications 

6. There are resource and financial implications in ensuring that the requirements to 
publicise the adoption of the new Model Code of Conduct are met, and in training for 
Members of Herefordshire Council and Members and Clerks of Parish Councils.  
Copies of the new Model Code of Conduct as adopted are to be available for 
inspection, and a copy of the Code that each council approves will be sent to the 
Standards Board for England.  Notice of adoption must be published in the Council’s 
own newsletter “Herefordshire Matters” and a local newspaper.  

Background 

7. It is a function of the Standards Committee to advise the Council on the adoption or 
review of the Members’ Code of Conduct.  On 4 April 2007 the Local Authorities 
(Model Code of Conduct) Order 2007 was laid before Parliament and came into force 
on 3 May 2007.   Local Authorities are required to adopt the Code within six months 
of its being made or the mandatory provisions of the Code will be imposed upon 
them.  It is therefore necessary that Herefordshire Council and all Parish and Town 
Councils within Herefordshire adopt a new Code of Conduct reflecting the provisions 
in the Model Code by 1 October 2007.  The Standards Board for England 
recommend that the new Code of Conduct be adopted in its model form without 
amendment.  It also recommends a preamble to the Code which outlines the ten 
general principles governing the conduct of Members of local authorities.   

8. Section 50 of the Local Government Act 2000 (“the Act”) sets out the Secretary of 
State’s power to issue a Model Code of Conduct that such a model code may contain 
provisions which are mandatory and provisions which are optional.  Section 151 (4) 
of the Act provides that local authorities must adopt a Code which incorporates any 
mandatory provisions and may include other provisions which are consistent with that 
Model Code.  

AGENDA ITEM 6

5



STANDARDS COMMITTEE 06 JULY 2007 
 

Further information on the subject of this report is available from Alan McLaughlin,  
Head of Legal and Democratic Services on (01432) 260200 

 

 

 

9. All of the provisions set out in the Model Code are mandatory for Herefordshire 
Council.  Paragraphs 7, 10 (2) (c) (i) and (ii), 11 and 12 (2) are not mandatory for 
Parish Councils.  A draft Code is included as Appendix 2 to this report.  

10. It is proposed that the adoption of the Code be put to the Council meeting to be held 
on the 27th July 2007.  A copy of the mandatory provisions of the Model Code is 
attached as Appendix 1 to this report in the form in which it would appear in the 
Council’s Constitution, if adopted.  

11. It is advised that the Members consider the additional provisions which should be 
added to the Code of Conduct. 

12. A Member training seminar will be arranged for Members of Herefordshire Council as 
soon as possible through Members’ Services.  

Parish Councils 

13. The functions that derive from Part 3 of the Act are discharged in relation to 
Herefordshire Council and its Members, and also in relation to Parish Councils which 
are wholly or mainly in Herefordshire Council’s area.   

14. Parish and Town Councils are under the same obligation to adopt and implement a 
new or revised Code of Conduct, reflecting the mandatory provisions contained 
within the Model Code by 1 October 2007.  A draft Code is included to the report as 
Appendix 2.  

15. The timing of adoption of the Code is for each Parish Council to determine in 
accordance with the requirement that they adopt the Code by 1 October 2007.  
Parish Councils through the Herefordshire Association of Local Councils (“HALC”) 
and the Standards Committee have agreed dates in July 2007 to train Parish Clerks 
on the Code of Conduct.  Parish Councils not members of HALC will need to 
consider their Parish Council Members’ training in relation to the Code.  

Summary of the Changes in the Code 

Preamble 

16. The ten principles derive from the Nolan Committee’s seven principles of public life.  
They set out the basis of the obligations contained within the Code and may be a 
helpful summary of the ethical framework within which Members should act.   

17. Compliance with the principles is not of itself a statutory obligation but a failure to act 
in accordance with the principles could result in a breach of the Code as constituting, 
for example, conduct which could bring a Member’s office or authority into disrepute.  

18. Members could decide not to include the preamble.  This would not change the 
nature of the obligations under the Code but would remove the context and basis 
within which the Code has been drafted and how it is likely to be perceived.  

Scope 

19. The Code is intended to apply when a Member is acting in an official capacity.  
Although not well phrased paragraph 2.3 of the Code states that in some 
circumstances the Code will also apply to conduct in a private capacity, but only 

6



STANDARDS COMMITTEE 06 JULY 2007 
 

Further information on the subject of this report is available from Alan McLaughlin,  
Head of Legal and Democratic Services on (01432) 260200 

 

 

 

where a criminal conviction has been imposed as a result of it.  The three instances 
set out in the Code where this is the case are in relation to intimidation (paragraph 
3.2 c); bringing the office or authority into disrepute (paragraph 5); and improperly 
seeking an advantage (paragraph 6 a).  The last two instances were also included 
within the previous Code.  

20. Until the proposed amendments to section 52 of the Act, which are currently before 
Parliament, reinstate the situation prior to the decision in the Livingstone case, only in 
very limited circumstances will the Code apply to conduct outside of a member’s 
official capacity.  

21. The Code as drafted provides that any criminal conviction must be of a serious 
nature (i.e. an imprisonable offence) in order to be taken into account in determining 
if a Member is bringing the authority into disrepute.  There may be local variations of 
interpretation on the weight to be given to various criminal convictions when local 
filtering is introduced.  It appears that the Code will have no application where there 
is no conviction as, for example, where a caution is received for a violent crime. 

General Obligations 

22. The positive obligation to treat others with respect remains (paragraph 3.1).  Rather 
than being required to promote equality as under the existing Code, however, the 
new Code requires Members not to do anything that may cause the Authority to 
breach any of the equality enactments (paragraph 3.a).  A new requirement not to 
bully any person has been inserted (paragraph 5.2.b).  

23. The provisions regarding confidentiality have been changed to allow disclosure of 
confidential information if it is reasonable and in the public interest to do so and if 
disclosure is made in good faith and in compliance with the reasonable requirements 
of the Authority (paragraph 4 a iv).  

24. A new obligation is placed on Members to have regard to the Code of Recommended 
Practice on Local Authority Publicity (paragraph 6 c).  Members will be familiar with 
this as it has been the subject of previous advice issued by the Monitoring Officer 
prior to the recent local elections period.  

25. The obligation to have regard to any relevant advice given by the Monitoring Officer 
and Chief Finance Officer has been retained (paragraph 7. (1)).  

26. The new bullying provision is likely to be the subject of further Guidance from the 
Standards Board which will stress that offensive, intimidating or insulting behaviour is 
likely to constitute a breach of the new Code. This should be contrasted with 
legitimate challenges to fellow members or officers as to why they hold their views or 
have given particular advice.  Personal criticism or attack however is likely to be seen 
as unacceptable behaviour.  

27. Further guidance is to be issued by the Standards Board on the new confidentiality 
provisions as to the nature of a “public interest” test that should be satisfied before 
disclosure together with an emphasis on the need to raise concern through the 
proper channels before such disclosure takes place.  It is suggested that Members 
be advised to contact the Monitoring Officer for advice before they release any 
confidential information and have regard to such advice. As the Committee noted in 
its comments on the draft Code, it would be undesirable for this provision to provide 
cover for deliberate leaks.  

7



STANDARDS COMMITTEE 06 JULY 2007 
 

Further information on the subject of this report is available from Alan McLaughlin,  
Head of Legal and Democratic Services on (01432) 260200 

 

 

 

Declarations of Interests – Personal Interests 

28. The new list of personal interests required to be registered (paragraph 8.1 a) is 
similar to the current list.   However, there has been added a new personal interest: 
namely where it relates to or is likely to affect the interests of any person who is in 
receipt of at least £25 worth of gift or hospitality (paragraph 8 1 viii).  Although such 
gifts or hospitality did need to be registered under the current Code, receipt did not 
constitute a personal interest and did not need to be declared at meetings.  

29. A personal interest should be declared at a meeting if it is registered in the Register 
of Members’ Interests.  A personal interest should also be declared where the matter 
under discussion might reasonably be regarded as affecting the well being or 
financial position of the Member, or “a relevant person”, to a greater extent than the 
majority of other council tax payers, rate payers or inhabitants of the ward affected by 
the decision.  

30. The list of “relevant people” including family or any person with whom you have a 
close personal association as well as employers of those people.  A Member is only 
liable to declare the interest if he or she is aware or might reasonably be aware of its 
existence.  

31. Personal interests (paragraph 8.1.a) should be registered in the Register of 
Members’ Interests, which is maintained by the Monitoring Officer, and changes 
notified within 28 days, as now (paragraph 13).  If a personal interest arises at a 
meeting, then the existence and nature of the interest should generally be declared 
at the outset whether or not the Member intends to speak (paragraph 9.1).  

32. If the personal interest relates to a body to which a Member has been nominated or 
appointed by the Council, or relates to a body exercising functions of a public nature, 
then the new Code proposes that the personal interest need only be declared at 
meetings where the Member actually speaks on the relevant issue (paragraph 9.2).  

33. There are detailed provisions with regard to the disclosure of a particular interest; 
Members will need to acquaint themselves with these in the event that any apply to 
their own circumstances.  “Sensitive information” which could create a serious risk of 
violence or intimidation need not be disclosed (paragraph 9.5) or registered 
(paragraph 14) provided the Monitoring Officer agrees.  

34. The new Code has removed the reference to “friend” and uses a wider term covering 
a person with whom a Member has a “close association”.  The term “family” is no 
longer defined.   

PREJUDICIAL INTERESTS 

35. The basic test remains the same; namely that where there is a personal interest, then 
the interest is also prejudicial where it is one which a member of the public with the 
knowledge of all the relevant facts, would reasonably regard it as so significant that it 
is likely to prejudice a Member’s judgement of the public interest (paragraph 10.1).  

36. The new Code adds (paragraph 10.2) that a Member does not have a prejudicial 
interest where: 

8



STANDARDS COMMITTEE 06 JULY 2007 
 

Further information on the subject of this report is available from Alan McLaughlin,  
Head of Legal and Democratic Services on (01432) 260200 

 

 

 

• the matter under discussion does not affect the financial position of a Member, or 
any person or body described in paragraph 8 in relation to whom a Member may 
have a personal interest; 

• the matter does not relate to the determining of any approval, consent, licence, 
permission or registration in relation to the Member, or any person or body 
described in paragraph 8 in relation to whom a Member has a personal interest; 

• the matter relates to specific exceptions such as housing; school meals; school 
transport and travel expenses; statutory sick pay; members’ allowances 
payments or indemnities; ceremonies honours; or setting the Council tax.  

The exceptions do need to be carefully studied as a number of them are different 
from the current position and Members need to ensure they are familiar with them.  

EFFECT OF PREJUDICIAL INTERESTS ON PARTICIPATION 

37. The new Code permits a Member with a prejudicial interest to make representations, 
answer questions or give evidence at a meeting open to the public, provided that the 
public are also allowed to attend the meeting for the same purpose, whether under a 
statutory right or otherwise.  After speaking, the Member must immediately withdraw 
from the room or chamber and not participate further nor take part during any debate, 
vote or recommendation made by the Authority.  

38. The Member will have the same right as a member of the public to address the 
meeting even if that Member has a prejudicial interest.  This will allow Members who 
belong to special interest groups or who were elected on a particular issues to make 
representations at a meeting open to the public.  

39. The new Code does not address the issue of “bias or predetermination”; Members 
will need to answer separately from the Code whether they are approaching an issue 
with an open mind and able to take part in the discussion even if they do not have a 
prejudicial interest because the outcome would have no effect on their financial 
position.  

SUMMARY 

40. There are a number of significant changes from the current Code.  The balance 
between the freedom of Members to act as local advocates and the need to ensure 
that decisions are made without the improper influence of personal interests has 
been re-examined in the new Code and greater participation by Members with 
prejudicial interests has been allowed.  

41. There will be consequential changes needed to the Council’s existing Code and 
Protocols as a result of the adoption of the Code.  

RISK MANAGEMENT 

42. Not to adopt the new Code will mean that the new Code will apply in any event by 
default.  

9



STANDARDS COMMITTEE 06 JULY 2007 
 

Further information on the subject of this report is available from Alan McLaughlin,  
Head of Legal and Democratic Services on (01432) 260200 

 

 

 

RECOMMENDATION 

THAT  Council be recommended to adopt the Model Code of 
Conduct as set out in the Local Authorities (Model Code of 
Conduct) Order 2007 (“the Code”) (Appendix 1) together 
with a preamble incorporating  the ten principles 
governing the conduct of Members, in place of its existing  

  Code; 

  Council be recommended to include the following optional 
provisions of the revised Code of Conduct:- 

(i) inclusion of paragraph 6 (c) relating to the Code of 
Publicity 

(ii) inclusion of paragraph 10 (c) (i) (ii) and 11 relating 
to executive arrangements and scrutiny.  

(iii) Inclusion of paragraph 12 (2) enabling Members to 
make representations to meetings as a member of 
the public despite.  

Council be recommended to include the following 
supplemental text as part of the Code of Conduct: 

(i) The addition of an extended definition of “meeting” 
to apply the rules on disclosure and withdrawal to 
informal meetings, by the addition of a new 
paragraph (1 (4) (d) as follows “informal meetings 
with other Members and / or with officers relating to 
the discharge of the Authority’s functions”; 

(ii) The addition of a new paragraph 3 (4) as follows “In 
particular, you shall not provide or offer to provide 
a reference for any candidate for appointment or 
promotion as an officer of the Authority”.  

(iii) Extend paragraph 6 (b) to read as follows “… where  

issuing or authorising the use by others of the 
resources of your authority or of resources of 
which ……. 

Parish Councils within Herefordshire be recommended to 
adopt the Code and preamble set out at Appendix 2 

10



STANDARDS COMMITTEE 06 JULY 2007 
 

Further information on the subject of this report is available from Alan McLaughlin,  
Head of Legal and Democratic Services on (01432) 260200 

 

 

 

 

  All Members and co-opted members of Herefordshire 
Council be encouraged to attend appropriate training 
sessions on the new Code which are likely to take place 
during July and September 2007.  

  Any consequential changes to the Council’s existing 
Codes and Protocols needed as a result of the adoption of 
the Code be reviewed by the Committee with the aim of 
early approval by Council. 

11



12



THE 
CODE OF
CONDUCT
Guide for members
May 2007

13



14



THE CODE OF CONDUCT 1

This guide from the Standards Board for England provides an overview of

the revised Model Code of Conduct. The Code of Conduct applies to all

members and co-opted members of local authorities, and all members are

required to sign up to it as part of their declarations of acceptance of office.

The Code of Conduct does not apply to the actions of authorities as a whole,

or to the conduct of its officers and employees.

The following pages aim to provide you with a general understanding of the

Code of Conduct and its requirements. Chapter 1 provides an introduction,

whilst Chapter 2 outlines your obligations under the Code of Conduct,

referencing specific paragaphs of the Code of Conduct for further

information. Chapters 3 and 4 deal with general issues surrounding interests,

and aim to clarify a number of provisions which you will find in Parts 2 and 3

of the Code of Conduct. You can obtain a copy of the Code of Conduct by

downloading it from www.standardsboard.gov.uk or to purchase a printed

copy, contact The Stationery Office by visiting www.tsoshop.co.uk or calling

0870 242 2345.

Ultimately, however, it is your responsibility to take specific advice from your

monitoring officer where appropriate and to make a decision as to the most

suitable course of action.

Preface

15



2 THE CODE OF CONDUCT

This guide is issued by the Standards Board
for England under the Local Government Act
2000 for elected, co-opted and appointed
members of:

• district, unitary, metropolitan, county and
London borough councils

• parish and town councils

• English and Welsh police authorities

• fire and rescue authorities (including fire
and civil defence authorities)

• the London Fire and Emergency Planning
Authority

• passenger transport authorities

• the Broads Authority

• national park authorities

• the Greater London Authority

• the Common Council of the City of
London

• the Council of the Isles of Scilly

16



THE CODE OF CONDUCT 3

Introduction

Adopting the Model Code of Conduct and
the Ten General Principles of Public Life

Deciding when the Code of Conduct 
applies to you 

General obligations under the Code 
of Conduct

Treating others with respect

Complying with equality laws

Bullying and intimidation

Compromising the impartiality of officers 
of the authority

Disclosing confidential information

Preventing access to information

Disrepute

Using your position improperly

The authority’s resources

Using resources for proper purposes only 

Considering advice provided to you 
and giving reasons

Personal and prejudicial interests

Personal interests

– Interests you must register

– Interests that are not on your register

Prejudicial interests

– What is a prejudicial interest?

– What to do when you have 
a prejudicial interest

– Dispensations

Special categories of interests

Gifts and hospitality

Overview and scrutiny committee meetings

Executive or cabinet roles

Sensitive information

Chapter 3 Page 16

Chapter 4 Page 29

Chapter 2 Page 8

Chapter 1 Page 4

Contents

17



1.

4 THE CODE OF CONDUCT

C
H

A
P

T
E

R
 1

Your local authority will have until 1 October
2007 to adopt the Code of Conduct. After
this time, members of authorities that have
not adopted it will be automatically covered
by it. To avoid confusion with the previous
Code, the Standards Board for England (‘the
Standards Board’) encourages your local
authority to adopt the Code of Conduct at its
first opportunity.

It is also important that the Code of Conduct
is adopted in its model form, without
amendment. This will give certainty to
members and the public as to what
standards are expected. It will ensure
consistency throughout local authorities,
avoiding confusion for members on more
than one authority and for the public. It will
also minimise the legal risk of your authority
adopting additional provisions which are
unenforceable.

However, there is one important exception.
The right to make representations, answer
questions and give evidence like a member
of the public when a member has a
prejudicial interest is not a mandatory
provision for:

• parish and town councils

• English and Welsh police authorities

• fire and rescue authorities (including fire
and civil defence authorities)

Introduction
Adopting the Model Code 
of Conduct

• the London Fire and Emergency Planning
Authority

• passenger transport authorities

• the Broads Authority

• national park authorities

• the Greater London Authority

Therefore, this right will only apply to the
above authorities if paragraph 12(2) of the
Code of Conduct is adopted by them.
Simply adopting the mandatory provisions
will not incorporate this important change. 

18



THE CODE OF CONDUCT 5

The Standards Board recommends that your
local authority includes a preamble to the
Code that it adopts, which outlines the ten
general principles governing the conduct of
members of local authorities. These ten
general principles are set out in the Relevant
Authorities (General Principles) Order 2001.
They are based on the Seven Principles of
Public Life set out by the Committee on
Standards in Public Life, and appear in full
in Table 1. 

These principles define the standards that
members should uphold, and serve as a
reminder of the purpose of the Code of
Conduct. 

As these principles do not create a statutory
obligation for members, the Standards
Board cannot accept allegations that they
have been breached.

However, you should be aware that a failure
to act in accordance with these general
principles may amount to a breach of the
Code of Conduct. For example, by placing
yourself in situations where your honesty
and integrity may be questioned, your
conduct may be “conduct which could
reasonably be regarded as bringing a
member’s office or authority into disrepute”
as stated in paragraph 5 of the Code of
Conduct.

C
H

A
P

T
E

R
 1

The Ten General Principles 
of Public Life

19



6 THE CODE OF CONDUCT

C
H

A
P

T
E

R
 1

The Code of Conduct applies to you:

1. Whenever you act in your official
capacity, including whenever you
conduct the business of your authority 
or act, claim to act, or give the
impression you are acting, in your official
capacity or as a representative of your
authority. 

2. At any time1, where your behaviour has
led to a criminal conviction. However,
only paragraphs 3(2)(c), 5 and 6(a) have 
effect in these circumstances when you
are acting in your private capacity.
Otherwise, the Code of Conduct does not
apply to your private life.

Where you act as a representative of your
authority on another relevant authority, you
must, when acting for that other authority,
comply with their Code of Conduct. 

You may also act as a representative of your
authority on another body, for example as a
school governor. When acting for that other
body, you must comply with your authority’s
Code of Conduct, unless it conflicts with
lawful obligations of the other body.

Deciding when the Code of
Conduct applies to you

1 Transitional Note: Until such time as there is Parliamentary
approval for amendments to section 52 of the Local
Government Act 2000 which reinstates the situation prior
to Collins J’s decision in Livingstone v Adjudication Panel
for England 2006, the Code of Conduct does not apply 
to conduct outside of the performance of your functions
as a member. Only if you have engaged in an activity
which has a link with the functions of your office will any
conduct in your private capacity be covered by the Code
of Conduct. If the legislative amendments are passed, the
Code of Conduct will also apply to criminal activity which
has led to a conviction.

20



THE CODE OF CONDUCT 7

Selflessness – members should serve only the public interest and should never
improperly confer an advantage or disadvantage on any person.

Honesty and integrity – members should not place themselves in situations where
their honesty and integrity may be questioned, should not behave improperly, and
should on all occasions avoid the appearance of such behaviour.

Objectivity – members should make decisions on merit, including when making
appointments, awarding contracts, or recommending individuals for rewards or
benefits.

Accountability – members should be accountable to the public for their actions and
the manner in which they carry out their responsibilities, and should co-operate fully
and honestly with any scrutiny appropriate to their particular office.

Openness – members should be as open as possible about their actions and those of
their authority, and should be prepared to give reasons for those actions.

Personal judgement – members may take account of the views of others, including
their political groups, but should reach their own conclusions on the issues before
them and act in accordance with those conclusions.

Respect for others – members should promote equality by not discriminating
unlawfully against any person, and by treating people with respect, regardless of their
race, age, religion, gender, sexual orientation or disability. They should respect the
impartiality and integrity of the authority’s statutory officers and its other employees.

Duty to uphold the law – members should uphold the law and, on all occasions, act
in accordance with the trust that the public is entitled to place in them.

Stewardship – members should do whatever they are able to do to ensure that their
authorities use their resources prudently, and in accordance with the law.

Leadership – members should promote and support these principles by leadership,
and by example, and should act in a way that secures or preserves public confidence.

C
H

A
P

T
E

R
 1

Table 1 The Ten General
Principles of Public Life

21



2.

8 THE CODE OF CONDUCT

C
H

A
P

T
E

R
 2

Treating others with respect

See Paragraph 3(1)

You must treat others with respect.

In politics, rival groupings are common,
either in formal political parties or more
informal alliances. It is expected that each
will campaign for their ideas, and they may
also seek to discredit the policies and
actions of their opponents. Criticism of ideas
and opinion is part of democratic debate,
and does not in itself amount to bullying or
failing to treat someone with respect.

Ideas and policies may be robustly
criticised, but individuals should not be
subject to unreasonable or excessive
personal attack. This particularly applies to
dealing with the public and officers. Chairs
of meetings are expected to apply the rules
of debate and procedure rules or standing
orders to prevent abusive or disorderly
conduct.

Whilst it is acknowledged that some
members of the public can make
unreasonable demands on members,
members should, as far as possible, treat
the public courteously and with
consideration. Rude and offensive
behaviour lowers the public’s expectations
and confidence in its elected
representatives. 

Complying with equality laws

See Paragraph 3(2)(a)

You must not do anything which may cause
your authority to breach any equality laws.

Equality laws prohibit discrimination on the
grounds of sex, race, disability, religion or
belief, sexual orientation and age.

The provisions of these laws are complex. 
In summary, there are four main forms of
discrimination:

• Direct discrimination: treating people
differently because of their sex, race,
disability, religion or belief, sexual
orientation or age.

• Indirect discrimination: treatment which
does not appear to differentiate between
people because of their sex, race,
disability, religion or belief, sexual
orientation or age, but which
disproportionately disadvantages them.

• Harassment: engaging in unwanted
conduct on the grounds of sex, race,
disability, religion or belief, sexual
orientation or age, which violates another
person’s dignity or creates a hostile,
degrading, humiliating or offensive
environment.

General obligations under the
Code of Conduct

22



THE CODE OF CONDUCT 9

• Victimisation: treating a person less
favourably because they have
complained of discrimination, brought
proceedings for discrimination, or been
involved in complaining about or
bringing proceedings for discrimination.

Equality laws also impose positive duties 
to eliminate unlawful discrimination and
harassment and to promote equality. They
also impose specific positive duties on
certain authorities.

Under equality laws, your authority may be
liable for any discriminatory acts which you
commit. This will apply when you do
something in your official capacity in a
discriminatory manner.

You must be careful not to act in a way
which may amount to any of the prohibited
forms of discrimination, or to do anything
which hinders your authority’s fulfilment of
its positive duties under equality laws. Such
conduct may cause your authority to break
the law, and you may find yourself subject
to a complaint that you have breached this
paragraph of the Code of Conduct.

Bullying and intimidation

See Paragraphs 3(2)(b) and 3(2)(c)

You must not bully any person including
other councillors, council officers or
members of the public.

Bullying may be characterised as offensive,
intimidating, malicious, insulting or
humiliating behaviour. Such behaviour may
happen once or be part of a pattern of
behaviour directed at a weaker person or
person over whom you have some actual or
perceived influence. Bullying behaviour
attempts to undermine an individual or a
group of individuals, is detrimental to their
confidence and capability, and may
adversely affect their health.

This can be contrasted with the legitimate
challenges which a member can make in
challenging policy or scrutinising
performance. An example of this would be
debates in the chamber about policy, or
asking officers to explain the rationale for
the professional opinions they have put
forward. You are entitled to challenge fellow
councillors and officers as to why they hold
their views. 

It is important that you raise issues about
poor performance in the correct way and
proper forum. However, if your criticism is a
personal attack or of an offensive nature,
you are likely to cross the line of what is
acceptable behaviour.

C
H

A
P

T
E

R
 2

23



10 THE CODE OF CONDUCT

You must not intimidate or attempt to
intimidate any person who is or is likely to be
a complainant, a witness, or involved in the
administration of any investigation or
proceedings relating to a failure to comply
with the Code of Conduct.

However much you may be concerned
about allegations that you or a fellow
councillor failed to comply with the Code of
Conduct, it is always wrong to bully,
intimidate or attempt to intimidate any
person involved in the investigation or
hearing. Even though you may not have
breached the Code of Conduct, you will
have your say during any independent
investigation or hearing, and you should let
these processes follow their natural course. 

If you intimidate a witness in an investigation
about your conduct, for example, you may
find yourself subject to another complaint
that you breached this paragraph of the
Code of Conduct. 

Compromising the impartiality

of officers of the authority

See Paragraph 3(2)(d)

You must not compromise, or attempt to
compromise, the impartiality of anyone who
works for, or on behalf of, the authority.

You should not approach or pressure
anyone who works for, or on behalf of, the

authority to carry out their duties in a biased
or partisan way. They must be neutral and
should not be coerced or persuaded to act
in a way that would undermine their
neutrality. For example, you should not get
officers to help you prepare party political
material, or to help you with matters relating
to your private business. You should not
provide or offer any incentive or reward in
return for acting in a particular way or
reaching a particular decision.

Although you can robustly question officers
in order to understand, for example, their
reasons for proposing to act in a particular
way, or the content of a report that they
have written, you must not try and force
them to act differently, change their advice,
or alter the content of that report, if doing so
would prejudice their professional integrity.

Disclosing confidential

information

See Paragraph 4(a)

You must not disclose confidential
information, or information which you believe
to be of a confidential nature, except in any
of the following circumstances: 

• You have the consent of the person
authorised to give it.

• You are required by law to do so. 

C
H

A
P

T
E

R
 2

24



THE CODE OF CONDUCT 11

• The disclosure is made to a third party for
the purposes of obtaining professional
advice (for example, your lawyer or other
professional adviser) provided that
person agrees not to disclose the
information to any other person. 

• The disclosure is in the public interest.
This is only justified in limited
circumstances, when all of the following
four requirements are met:

1. the disclosure must be reasonable

2. the disclosure must be in the public
interest

3. the disclosure must be made in good
faith

4. the disclosure must be made in
compliance with any reasonable
requirements of your authority

In relation to the disclosure of confidential
information in the public interest, the four
requirements to be met are outlined in more
detail below.

1. The first requirement, that the disclosure
must be reasonable, requires you to
consider matters such as:

• Whether you believe that the
information disclosed, and any
allegation contained in it, is
substantially true. If you do not
believe this, the disclosure is unlikely
to be reasonable.

• Whether you make the disclosure for
personal gain. If you are paid to
disclose the information, the
disclosure is unlikely to be
reasonable.

• The identity of the person to whom
the disclosure is made. It may be
reasonable to disclose information to
the police or to an appropriate
regulator. It is less likely to be
reasonable for you to disclose the
information to the world at large
through the media.

• The extent of the information
disclosed. The inclusion of
unnecessary detail, and in particular,
private matters such as addresses or
telephone numbers, is likely to render
the disclosure unreasonable.

• The seriousness of the matter. The
more serious the matter disclosed,
the more likely it is that the disclosure
will be reasonable.

• The timing of the disclosure. If the
matter to which the disclosure relates
has already occurred, and is unlikely
to occur again, the disclosure may be
less likely to be reasonable than if the
matter is continuing, or is likely to re-
occur.

• Whether the disclosure involves your
authority failing in a duty of
confidence owed to another person.

C
H

A
P

T
E

R
 2

25



12 THE CODE OF CONDUCT

C
H

A
P

T
E

R
 2

2. The second requirement, that the
disclosure must be in the public interest,
needs to involve one or more of the
following matters or something of
comparable seriousness, that has either
happened in the past, is currently
happening, or is likely to happen in the
future:

(a) A criminal offence is committed.

(b) Your authority or some other person
fails to comply with any legal
obligation to which they are subject.

(c) A miscarriage of justice occurs.

(d) The health or safety of any individual
is in danger.

(e) The environment is likely to be
damaged.

(f) That information tending to show any
matter falling within (a) to (e) is
deliberately concealed.

3. The third requirement, that the disclosure
is made in good faith, will not be met if
you act with an ulterior motive, for
example, to achieve a party political
advantage or to settle a score with a
political opponent. 

4. The fourth requirement, that you comply
with the reasonable requirements of your
authority, means that before making the
disclosure you must comply with your
authority’s policies or protocols on
matters such as whistle-blowing and
confidential information. You must first
raise your concerns through the
appropriate channels set out in such
policies or protocols.

In summary, to decide whether the
disclosure is reasonable and in the public
interest, you may need to conduct a
balancing exercise weighing up the public
interest in maintaining confidentiality against
any countervailing public interest favouring
disclosure. This will require a careful focus
on how confidential the information is, on
any potentially harmful consequences of its
disclosure, and on any factors which may
justify its disclosure despite these potential
consequences.

In some situations, it is extremely unlikely
that a disclosure can be justified in the
public interest. These will include where the
disclosure amounts to a criminal offence, or
where the information disclosed is protected
by legal professional privilege.

26



THE CODE OF CONDUCT 13

C
H

A
P

T
E

R
 2

Preventing access to

information

See Paragraph 4(b)

You must not prevent anyone getting
information that they are entitled to by law.

You must not prevent any person from
accessing information which they are
entitled to by law. This includes information
under the Freedom of Information Act 2000
or those copies of minutes, agendas,
reports and other documents of your
authority which they have a right to access.
To find out more about what types of
information the public can access, contact
the Information Commissioner’s Office by
visiting www.ico.gov.uk or by calling 
0845 630 6060.

Disrepute

See Paragraph 5 

You must not bring your office or authority
into disrepute while acting in your official
capacity, or at any time through criminal
activity that leads to a criminal conviction.2

As a member, your actions and behaviour
are subject to greater scrutiny than that of
ordinary members of the public. You should
be aware that your actions in both your
public and private life might have an
adverse impact on your office or your
authority. Dishonest and deceitful behaviour
in your role as a member may bring your
authority into disrepute, as may conduct in
your private life which results in a criminal
conviction, such as dishonest, threatening
or violent behaviour.

Using your position

improperly

See Paragraph 6(a)

You must not use, or attempt to use, your
position improperly to the advantage or
disadvantage of yourself or anyone else. 

You should not use, or attempt to use, your
public office either for your or anybody
else’s personal gain or loss. For example,
your behaviour would be improper if you
sought to further your own private interests
through your position as a member. 

In addition to paragraph 6(a), paragraph 12
is also relevant to the proper use of your
position. Paragraph 12 supports your role as
a community advocate, representing and
speaking for the concerns of your
community, even where you have a
prejudicial interest. This right applies to you
at meetings where you have a statutory right

2 Transitional Note: Until such time as there is Parliamentary
approval for amendments to section 52 of the Local
Government Act 2000 which reinstates the situation prior
to Collins J’s decision in Livingstone v Adjudication Panel
for England 2006, the Code of Conduct does not apply 
to conduct outside of the performance of your functions
as a member. Only if you have engaged in an activity
which has a link with the functions of your office will any
conduct in your private capacity be covered by the Code
of Conduct. If the legislative amendments are passed, the
Code of Conduct will also apply to criminal activity which
has led to a conviction.

27



14 THE CODE OF CONDUCT

C
H

A
P

T
E

R
 2

to speak or you are provided with the same
opportunity to speak as ordinary members
of the public would be allowed. If your
authority does not allow members of the
public to attend the relevant meeting for the
purpose of speaking to it, paragraph 12 will
not apply to you unless you have a statutory
right to speak on the matter. 

You must leave the room or chamber
immediately after you have made the
representations, given your evidence, or
answered questions, and make no further
attempt to influence the decision. If the
meeting decides that you must stop
speaking to the meeting, even if you have 
more to say, you must stop and leave the
room. If you fail to comply with the meeting’s
direction or paragraph 12 of the Code of
Conduct, you may be found to have
improperly influenced the decision.  

The authority’s resources

See Paragraph 6(b)(i)

You must only use or authorise the use of
the resources of the authority in accordance
with its requirements. 

Where your authority provides you with
resources (for example telephone, computer
and other IT facilities, transport or support
from council employees), you must only use

these resources or employees for carrying
out your local authority business and any
other activity which your authority has
authorised you to use them for.

You must be familiar with the rules applying
to the use of these resources made by your
authority. Failure to comply with your
authority’s rules is likely to amount to a
breach of the Code of Conduct.

If you authorise someone (for example a
member of your family) to use your
authority’s resources, you must take care to
ensure that this is allowed by your
authority’s rules.

Using resources for proper

purposes only

See Paragraphs 6(b)(ii) and 6(c)

You must make sure you use the authority’s
resources for proper purposes only. It is not
appropriate to use, or authorise others to
use, the resources for political purposes,
including party political purposes. When
using the authority’s resources, you must
have regard, if applicable, to any Local
Authority Code of Publicity made under the
Local Government Act 1986. 

You should never use council resources for

28



THE CODE OF CONDUCT 15

C
H

A
P

T
E

R
 2

purely political purposes, including
designing and distributing party political
material produced for publicity purposes. 

However, your authority may authorise you
to use its resources and facilities for political
purposes in connection with your authority’s
business. For example, holding surgeries in
your ward and dealing with correspondence
from your constituents. In this case, you
must be aware of the limitations placed
upon such use for these purposes. Using
your authority’s resources outside of these
limitations is likely to amount to a breach of
the Code of Conduct.

Considering advice provided

to you and giving reasons

See Paragraph 7

Please note: paragraph 7 is not mandatory for parish

councils. However, your parish may choose to include

an obligation to take account of your clerk’s advice in

the Code your authority adopts.

You must have regard to advice from your
monitoring officer or chief finance officer
where they give it under their statutory
duties.

If you seek advice, or advice is offered to

you, for example, on whether or not you
should register a personal interest, you
should have regard to this  advice before
you make your mind up. Failure to do so
may be a breach of the Code of Conduct. 

You must give reasons for all decisions in
accordance with statutory requirements and
any reasonable requirements imposed by
your authority. Giving reasons for decisions
is particularly important in relation to
regulatory decisions and decisions where
people’s rights are affected.

Where members disagree with officer
recommendations in making a decision,
members will need to take particular care in
giving clear reasons for the decision.

29



3.

16 THE CODE OF CONDUCT

C
H

A
P

T
E

R
 3

Personal and prejudicial interests

Key points:

Two types of personal interest

You have a personal interest in any business of your authority where it relates to or is
likely to affect: 

a) An interest that you must register.

b) An interest that is not on your register, but where the well-being or financial position
of you, members of your family, or people with whom you have a close association,
is likely to be affected by the business of your authority more than it would affect
the majority of: 

• inhabitants of the ward or electoral division affected by the decision 
(in the case of authorities with electoral divisions or wards) 

• inhabitants of the Assembly constituency affected by the decision 
(in the case of the Greater London Authority) 

• inhabitants of the authority’s area (in all other cases) 

These two categories of personal interests are explained in this section. If you declare
a personal interest you can remain in the meeting, speak and vote on the matter,
unless your personal interest is also a prejudicial interest.

What constitutes a prejudicial interest is outlined in the next section on page 22.

Effect of having a personal interest in a matter

You must declare that you have a personal interest, and the nature of that interest,
before the matter is discussed or as soon as it becomes apparent to you except in
limited circumstances. Even if your interest is on the register of interests, you must
declare it in the meetings where matters relating to that interest are discussed, unless
an exemption applies. When an exemption may be applied is explained opposite.

Personal interests

30



THE CODE OF CONDUCT 17

C
H

A
P

T
E

R
 3

Exemption to the rule on declaring a
personal interest to the meeting

An exemption applies where your interest
arises solely from your membership of, or
position of control or management on:

1. any other body to which you were
appointed or nominated by the authority 

2. any other body exercising functions of a
public nature (for example another local
authority) 

In these exceptional cases, provided that
you do not have a prejudicial interest, you
only need to declare your interest if and
when you speak on the matter.

Example: if you are attending a council
debate on education policy and are also a
local education authority appointed
governor, you would only need to declare
an interest if and when you decided to
speak during the debate. If you do not want
to speak to the meeting on the decision, you
may vote on the matter without making a
declaration. 

If you have sensitive employment, which you
would like to withhold from the register of
interests, please see page 31 for more
information.

a) Interests you must register 

You need to register your interests so that
the public, authority staff and fellow
members know which of your interests might
give rise to a conflict of interest. The register
is a document that can be consulted when
(or before) an issue arises, and so allows
others to know what interests you have, and
whether they might give rise to a possible
conflict of interest.

The register also protects you. You are
responsible for deciding whether or not you
should declare an interest in a meeting, but
it can be helpful for you to know early on if
others think that a potential conflict might
arise. It is also important that the public

Key points:

All members have to provide a record of
their interests in a public register of
interests.

You must tell your monitoring officer in
writing (in the case of a parish councillor,
perhaps through your clerk) within 28
days of taking office, or within 28 days of
any change to your register of interests,
of any interests which fall within the
categories set out in the Code of
Conduct, outlined below. 

31



18 THE CODE OF CONDUCT

C
H

A
P

T
E

R
 3

know about any interest that might have to
be declared by you or other members, so
that decision making is seen by the public
as open and honest. This helps to ensure
that public confidence in the integrity of
local governance is maintained.

As previously mentioned, you must tell your
monitoring officer in writing within 28 days of
taking office, or within 28 days of any
change to your register of interests, of any
interests which fall within the categories set
out in the Code of Conduct. These
categories include:

• Your membership or position of control
or management in:

– any other bodies to which you were
appointed or nominated by the authority

– any bodies exercising functions of a
public nature (described below), or
directed to charitable purposes, or
whose principal purposes include the
influence of public opinion or policy,
including any political party or 
trade union

• Your job(s) or business(es).

• The name of your employer or people
who have appointed you to work for
them. 

• The name of any person who has made
a payment to you in respect of your
election, or expenses you have incurred
in carrying out your duties.

• The name of any person, company or
other body which has a place of
business or land in the authority’s area,
and in which you have a shareholding of
more than £25,000 (nominal value) or
have a stake of more than 1/100th of the
share capital of the company.

• Any contracts between the authority and
yourself, your firm (if you are a partner)
or a company (if you are a paid director
or if you have a shareholding as
described above) including any lease,
licence from the authority and any
contracts for goods, services or works.
Where the contract relates to use of land
or a property, the land must be identified
on the register. 

• Any gift or hospitality over the value of 
£25 that you receive as a member and
the person you believe to be the source
of the gift or hospitality.

• Any land and property in the authority’s
area in which you have a beneficial
interest (or a licence to occupy for more
than 28 days) including, but not limited
to, the land and house you live in and
any allotments you own or use.

32



THE CODE OF CONDUCT 19

C
H

A
P

T
E

R
 3

If you have sensitive employment, which you
would like to withhold from the register of
interests, please see page 31 for more
information. 

What is “a body exercising functions of a
public nature”?

The phrase “a body exercising functions of
a public nature” has been subject to broad
interpretation by the courts for a variety of
different purposes. Although it is not
possible to produce a definitive list of such
bodies, here are some of the criteria to
consider when deciding whether or not a
body meets that definition:

• Does that body carry out a public
service?

• Is the body taking the place of local or
central government in carrying out the
function?

• Is the body (including one outsourced in
the private sector) exercising a function
delegated to it by a public authority?

• Is the function exercised under
legislation or according to some statutory
power?

• Can the body be judicially reviewed?

Unless you answer ‘yes’ to one of the above
questions, it is unlikely that the body in your
case is exercising functions of a public
nature. 

Examples of bodies included in this
definition: regional and local development
agencies, other government agencies, other
councils, public health bodies, council-
owned companies exercising public
functions, arms length management
organisations carrying out housing functions
on behalf of your authority, school governing
bodies.

If you need further information or specific
advice on this matter, please contact your
monitoring officer.

b) Interests that are not on your register

Key points:

You have a personal interest in a matter
if that matter affects the well-being or
financial position of you, members of
your family, or people with whom you
have a close association, more than it
would affect the majority of people in
the ward or electoral division affected
by the decision, or in the authority’s
area or constituency.

33



20 THE CODE OF CONDUCT

C
H

A
P

T
E

R
 3

You must also look at how any matter would
affect your interests or those of members of
your family or close associates. This
includes:

• your and their jobs and businesses

• your and their employers, firms you or
they are a partner of, and companies you
or they are a director of

• any person or body who has appointed
you, members of your family or close
associates, to any position

• corporate bodies in which you or they
have a shareholding of more than
£25,000 (nominal value)

What does “affecting well-being or
financial position” mean?

The term ‘well-being’ can be described as a
condition of contentedness and happiness.
Anything that could affect your quality of life,
either positively or negatively, is likely to
affect your well-being.

A personal interest can affect you, your
family or close personal associates
positively and negatively. So if you or they
have the potential to gain or lose from a
matter under consideration, a personal
interest would need to be declared in both
situations. 

Who is a member of your family or close
associate?

A member of your family should be given a
very wide meaning. It includes a partner
(someone you are married to, your civil
partner, or someone you live with in a similar
capacity), a parent, a parent-in-law, a son or
daughter, a stepson or stepdaughter, the
child of a partner, a brother or sister, a
brother or sister of your partner, a
grandparent, a grandchild, an uncle or aunt,
a nephew or niece, and the partners of any
of these people. 

A person with whom you have a close
association is someone that you are in either
regular or irregular contact with over a
period of time who is more than an
acquaintance. It is someone a reasonable
member of the public might think you would
be prepared to favour or disadvantage
when discussing a matter that affects them.
It may be a friend, a colleague, a business
associate or someone whom you know
through general social contacts. 

What if I belong to an authority without
wards?

If you are a member of an authority that
does not have wards, you will need to
declare a personal interest whenever you
consider a matter in a meeting of your
authority if it affects the well-being or
financial position of you, your family, or

34



THE CODE OF CONDUCT 21

C
H

A
P

T
E

R
 3

people with whom you have a close
association, more than it would affect other
people in your authority’s area.

What if I am not aware of my personal
interest?

Your obligation to disclose a personal
interest to a meeting only applies when you
are aware of or ought to be aware of the
existence of the personal interest. 

Clearly you cannot be expected to declare
something of which you are unaware. It
would be impractical to expect you to
research into the employment, business
interests and other activities of all your close
associates and relatives. However, you
should not ignore the existence of interests
which, from the point of view of a
reasonable and objective observer, you
should have been aware.

35



22 THE CODE OF CONDUCT

C
H

A
P

T
E

R
 3

1. What is a prejudicial interest? a) Exempt categories of decisions

Paragraph 10(2)(c) of the Code of Conduct
states that a member will not have a
prejudicial interest if the matter relates to
any of the following functions of their
authority: 

• Housing: if you hold a tenancy or lease
with the authority, as long as the matter
does not relate to your particular tenancy
or lease.

• School meals or school transport and
travelling expenses: if you are a parent
or guardian of a child in full-time
education or you are a parent governor,
unless it relates particularly to the school
your child attends.

• Statutory sick pay: if you are receiving
this, or are entitled to this.

• An allowance, payment or indemnity for 
members.

• Any ceremonial honour given to 
members.

• Setting council tax or a precept.

Key points:

Your personal interest will also be a
prejudicial interest in a matter if all of
the following conditions are met:

a) The matter does not fall within one of
the exempt categories of decisions. 

b) The matter affects your financial
interests or relates to a licensing or
regulatory matter.

c) A member of the public, who knows
the relevant facts, would reasonably
think your personal interest is so
significant that it is likely to prejudice
your judgement of the public interest.

An explanation of each of these points
follows.

Prejudicial interests 

36



THE CODE OF CONDUCT 23

C
H

A
P

T
E

R
 3

b) Financial interests and licensing or
regulatory matters

You can only have a prejudicial interest in a
matter if it falls into one of the following two
categories:

a) The matter affects your financial position
or the financial position of any person or
body through whom you have a personal
interest.

Examples: an application for grant-
funding to a body on your register of
interests; a contract for services between
the authority and that body; or leasing a
property to or from a close associate or
member of your family. Your financial
position can be affected directly or
indirectly, favourably or unfavourably,
substantially or marginally. 

b) The matter relates to an approval,
consent, licence, permission or
registration that affects you or any person
or body with which you have a personal
interest.

Examples: considering a planning or
licensing application made by you or a
body on your register of interests;
Licensing Act licences; pet shop and
dog breeding licensing; petroleum
licences; street trading licences; taxi

licensing; consent, approval or
permission pursuant to a contractual
document such as a lease or commercial
contract; street collection permit; or
lottery registration.

c) What is so significant that it is likely to
prejudice your judgement?

If a reasonable member of the public with
knowledge of all the relevant facts would
think that your judgement of the public
interest might be prejudiced, then you have
a prejudicial interest.

You must ask yourself whether a member of
the public – if he or she knew all the
relevant facts – would think that your
personal interest was so significant that it
would be likely to prejudice your judgement.
In other words, the interest must be
perceived as likely to harm or impair your
ability to judge the public interest. 

The mere existence of local knowledge, or
connections within the local community, will
not normally be sufficient to meet the test.
There must be some factor that might
positively harm your ability to judge the
public interest objectively. The nature of the
matter is also important, including whether a
large number of people are equally affected
by it or whether you or a smaller group are
particularly affected. 

37



24 THE CODE OF CONDUCT

C
H

A
P

T
E

R
 3

Some general principles must be
remembered when applying this test. You
should clearly act in the public interest and
not in the interests of family or close
associates. You are a custodian of the
public purse and the public interest and
your behaviour and decisions should reflect
this responsibility. 

Example: you would have a prejudicial
interest in a planning application proposal if
a member of your family lives next to the
proposed site. This is because your family
member would be likely to be affected by
the application to a greater extent than the
majority of the inhabitants of the ward
affected by the decision (or authority, if your
authority does not have wards) and this
gives you a personal interest in the issue.
The existence of the close family tie means
a reasonable member of the public might
think that it would prejudice your view of the
public interest when considering the
planning application. It does not matter
whether it actually would or not.

2. What to do when you have a prejudicial
interest

Even where you have a prejudicial interest,
the Code of Conduct supports your role as
a community advocate and enables you in
certain circumstances to represent your
community and to speak on issues
important to them and to you.

However, this right is not mandatory for
certain types of authorities (including parish
councils and police authorities). For such
authorities it will only apply if paragraph
12(2) of the code is expressly adopted by
your authority and the public are allowed to
speak to meetings of your authority. Simply
adopting the mandatory provisions will not
incorporate this important change. See
page 4 for a full list of authorities in this
category.

38



THE CODE OF CONDUCT 25

C
H

A
P

T
E

R
 3

Do I have a statutory right to speak to the
meeting?

The Code of Conduct does not provide you
with a general right to speak to a meeting
where you have a prejudicial interest.
However, in limited circumstances,
legislation may provide you with a right to
speak (for example, licensing hearings and
standards hearings) which the Code of
Conduct recognises. If so, you will be
allowed to exercise that right to speak. Your
monitoring officer should be able to confirm
whether this is relevant to your case.

If I don’t have a statutory right, will I be
allowed to speak to the meeting?

The Code of Conduct aims to provide
members with the same rights as ordinary
members of the public to speak on certain
matters in meetings, despite having a
prejudicial interest. These rights are usually
governed by your authority’s constitution,
procedure rules or standing orders, and
may be subject to conditions including time
limits or the fact that representations can
only be made in writing. 

If an ordinary member of the public would
be allowed to speak to a meeting about an
item, you should be provided with the same
opportunity. You will be able to make
representations, answer questions or give
evidence, even if you have a prejudicial

Key points:

If you have a prejudicial interest in a
matter being discussed at a meeting,
you must declare that you have a
prejudicial interest and the nature of that
interest as soon as that interest becomes
apparent to you. 

You should then leave the room, unless
members of the public are allowed to
make representations, give evidence
or answer questions about the matter,
by statutory right or otherwise. If that is
the case, you can also attend the
meeting for that purpose.

However, you must immediately leave the
room once you have finished or when the
meeting decides that you have finished
(if that is earlier). You cannot remain in
the public gallery to observe the vote on
the matter.

In addition, you must not seek to
improperly influence a decision in
which you have a prejudicial interest.
This rule is similar to your general
obligation not to use your position as a
member improperly to your or someone
else’s advantage or disadvantage.

39



26 THE CODE OF CONDUCT

C
H

A
P

T
E

R
 3

interest in the item. You may not take part in
the discussion or observe the vote. 

When must I leave the room where the
meeting is held?

You must leave immediately after you have
made your representations, given evidence
or answered questions, and before any
debate starts. 

If the meeting decides that you should finish
speaking, despite your intention to say
more, you must comply with the meeting’s
decision. Although members of the public
may be allowed to observe the discussion
and vote on the matter, you are not allowed
to do so and must leave the room
immediately. Failure to do so may be
viewed as an attempt to improperly
influence the meeting.

What does improperly influencing a
decision mean?

You must not use your position or attempt to
use your position improperly to further your
own interests in a way that is not open to
ordinary members of the public. Clear
examples of improper influence would be
using coercion, harassment, inducement or
pressure to influence a matter.

It may also be improper if you refuse to
leave the meeting, or continue to speak to a

meeting, on a matter in which you have a
prejudicial interest, after the meeting has
decided that you must stop speaking and
leave. 

What if the public are not allowed to
speak to the meeting on the matter?

If an ordinary member of the public is not
allowed to speak on the matter, you cannot
do so if you have a prejudicial interest. You
must leave the room where the debate is
being held and not seek to influence the
debate in any way. 

This may be the case, for example, where
your authority is discussing a confidential
matter in closed session or does not have
procedure rules or standing orders in place
that allow members of the public to speak at
a meeting of your authority. Like the public,
you are not allowed to participate if you
have a prejudicial interest. However, where
the public may be allowed to sit in the
public gallery to observe the meeting, you
will be required to leave the room during the
debate and vote. 

If I have a prejudicial interest, how else
can I influence the decision?

You can still present your views to the
meeting through other means and influence
the decision in a way that is not improper.
For example, you can:

40



THE CODE OF CONDUCT 27

C
H

A
P

T
E

R
 3

• Make written representations in your
private capacity. The Standards Board
recommends that the existence and
nature of the interest should be
disclosed in such representations. You
should not seek preferential
consideration for your representations.
Such written representations should be
addressed to officers rather than other
members of the authority.

• Use a professional representative to
make, for example, a planning
application on your behalf.

• Arrange for another member of your
authority to represent the views of your
constituents on matters in which you
have a prejudicial interest.

41



28 THE CODE OF CONDUCT

C
H

A
P

T
E

R
 3

3. Dispensations

If I have a prejudicial interest, can I obtain
a dispensation to allow me to take part in
the meeting?

You must apply for a dispensation
individually and not as a group or authority.
If the standards committee approves your
application, it must grant the dispensation in
writing and before the meeting is held. If
you need a dispensation, you should apply
for one as soon as is reasonably possible.

Only the standards committee can grant the
dispensation and will do so at its discretion.
The standards committee will need to
balance the public interest in preventing
members with prejudicial interests from
taking part in decisions, against the public
interest in decisions being taken by a
reasonably representative group of
members of the authority. If failure to grant a
dispensation will result in an authority or
committee not achieving a quorum, this may
well constitute grounds for granting a
dispensation. 

The Standards Board cannot grant
dispensations or advise on whether or not
they should be granted. For further advice
on dispensations, you should contact your
monitoring officer.

Key points:

You can apply in writing to your local
standards committee for a dispensation
on one of the following grounds: 

• over 50 per cent of the authority or
committee members would be
prevented from taking a full part in a
meeting because of prejudicial
interests

• the political balance at the meeting
would be upset1

1 Please note there is currently a problem with the drafting
of the Dispensation Regulations. The political balance
criterion is linked to an authority being unable to comply
with its duty under section 15(4) of the Local Government
and Housing Act 1989. This duty requires the
appointment of committees that reflect the overall political
balance of an authority. However, the duty does not arise
in relation to individual meetings either of the authority or
its committees. For this reason it is difficult to envisage
circumstances in which the criterion would be met. Until
such time as the appropriate amendments are made to
the Regulations it is not likely that dispensations would be
granted on the basis of the political balance criterion.

42



THE CODE OF CONDUCT 29

C
H

A
P

T
E

R
 4

1. Gifts and hospitality Is the gift or hospitality connected to my
official duties as a member?

You should ask yourself, would I have been
given this if I was not on the council? If you
are in doubt as to the motive behind a gift or
hospitality, we recommend that you register
it or speak to your monitoring officer or your
parish clerk where appropriate.

You do not need to register gifts and
hospitality which are not related to your role
as a member, such as Christmas gifts from
your friends and family, or gifts which you
do not accept. However, you should always
register a gift or hospitality if it could be
perceived as something given to you
because of your position or if your authority
requires you to. 

What if I do not know the value of a gift
or hospitality?

The general rule is, if in doubt as to the
value of a gift or hospitality, you should
register it, as a matter of good practice and
in accordance with the principles of
openness and accountability in public life.

You may have to estimate how much a gift
or hospitality is worth. Also, an accumulation
of small gifts you receive from the same
source over a short period that add up to
£25 or over should be registered. 

Key points:

You must register any gifts or hospitality
worth £25 or over that you receive in
connection with your official duties
as a member, and the source of the gift
or hospitality. 

You must register the gift or hospitality
and its source within 28 days of
receiving it.

Like other interests in your register of
interests, you automatically have a
personal interest in a matter under
consideration if it is likely to affect a
person who gave you a gift or
hospitality that is registered. If that is the
case, you must declare the existence
and nature of the gift or hospitality, the
person who gave it to you, how the
business under consideration relates to
that person and then decide whether
that interest is also a prejudicial
interest.

Once three years have passed since
you registered the gift or hospitality in
your register of interests, your obligation
to disclose that interest to any relevant
meeting ceases.

4.
Special categories of interests

43



30 THE CODE OF CONDUCT

C
H

A
P

T
E

R
 4

2. Overview and
scrutiny committee
meetings

Please note: this section will not apply to parish and
town councils, English and Welsh police authorities,
fire and rescue authorities (including fire and civil
defence authorities), the London Fire and Emergency
Planning Authority, passenger transport authorities,
the Broads Authority, national park authorities and the
Greater London Authority.

You have a prejudicial interest in any
business before an overview and scrutiny
committee or sub-committee meeting where
both of the following requirements are met:

• That business relates to a decision made
(whether implemented or not) or action
taken by your authority’s executive or
another of your authority’s committees,
sub-committees, joint committees or joint
sub-committees.

• You were a member of that decision-
making body at that time and you were
present at the time the decision was
made or action taken. 

If the overview and scrutiny committee is
checking a decision which you were
involved in making you may be called to
attend the meeting to give evidence or
answer questions on the matter. However,
you will not be able to attend the meeting in
this manner unless your authority’s

constitution or standing orders allow
members of the public to attend the
overview and scrutiny committee for the
same purpose. 

You will, however, be able to attend the
meeting to give evidence or answer
questions if you are a leader or cabinet
member of an authority operating executive
arrangements, provided you follow the
normal rules for executive members who
have personal and prejudicial interests.

3. Executive or cabinet
roles

Please note: this section will not apply to parish and
town councils, English and Welsh police authorities,
fire and rescue authorities (including fire and civil
defence authorities), the London Fire and Emergency
Planning Authority, passenger transport authorities,
the Broads Authority, national park authorities, the
Greater London Authority or any other authorities that
do not have executive arrangements. 

If you are a leader or cabinet member of an
authority operating executive arrangements,
you must follow the normal rules for
executive members who have personal and
prejudicial interests. 

If your interest is personal but not
prejudicial, you can advise the executive on
the issue and take part in executive
discussions and decisions as long as you
declare your interest. You can also exercise

44



THE CODE OF CONDUCT 31

C
H

A
P

T
E

R
 4

delegated powers in the matter as long as
you record the existence and nature of your
personal interest.

If you are an executive member who can
take individual decisions, and you have a
prejudicial interest in a decision, your
authority may make other arrangements as
set out in sections 14-16 of the Local
Government Act 2000. This means that the
decision can be taken by an officer, another
cabinet member, the full executive, or a
committee of the executive.

Although you have a prejudicial interest in a
matter, you may be able to make
representations, answer questions and give
evidence as long as a member of the public
would have the same rights, but you are
barred from decision-making about that
matter individually or in cabinet. You also
should not participate in any early
consideration of it, or exercise any
delegated powers in relation to it. If you
have delegated powers in that area, you
should refer the consideration and any
decisions on the matter to the cabinet to
avoid the perception of improper influence. 

4. Sensitive
information

Sensitive information may include your
sensitive employment (such as certain
scientific research or the Special Forces) or
other interests that are likely to create a
serious risk of violence or intimidation
against you or someone who lives with you. 

You should provide this information to your
monitoring officer and explain your
concerns regarding the disclosure of the
sensitive information; including why it is
likely to create a serious risk that you or a
person who lives with you will be subjected
to violence or intimidation. You do not need
to include this information in your register of
interests, if your monitoring officer agrees.
Ultimately, you must decide what
information to include on your publicly
available register of interests.

Key points:

You may be exempt from having to
include sensitive information on your
register of interests. If your personal
interest in a matter under discussion at
a meeting is sensitive information, you
will need to declare that you have a
personal interest but you will not have to
give any details about the nature of that
interest.

45



32 THE CODE OF CONDUCT

C
H

A
P

T
E

R
 4

How to contact us:

The Standards Board for England
Fourth Floor
Griffin House
40 Lever Street
Manchester M1 1BB

www.standardsboard.gov.uk

For enquiries about the Code of Conduct, please contact:

Enquiries line: 0845 078 8181
enquiries@standardsboard.gov.uk

For further copies of this publication, please contact:
publications@standardsboard.gov.uk

46



47



The Standards Board for England
Fourth Floor
Griffin House
40 Lever Street
Manchester M1 1BB

Enquiries l ine: 0845 078 8181

enquiries@standardsboard.gov.uk
www.standardsboard.gov.uk

48



��������	
��

� � � � � � � � � � 	 
 � � � � � � 
 � � �

��������		���

������������������������������������

���������������������������������������������������  !�

���� � � � � ����	
��������

��������������������� ����	
��������

����������������� � � �������������

��� ��������"� ��� ������ ���� ��##�������� ���� ������ $�%���#���� #�&��� ��� �����'��(������� ���
�)�������������*�'��������������+"����������, �-�������.�/�0-���������1�/�����- ,���/��1�������.��
������������$�%���#���������   ���2

�����������"�������������������������������������'�����������, �,������������2�

��� ��������"� ��� ������ ��� ���������� ���� ���������� ��� ����������� '��� ��� *�����*���� ���� ��� ��#��

+���(��*����������������������������������.3�-���������������2

������� ��!�""# !#"# ��� $��%%&�!���� �

	�4�-������������#�"�+��������������������������������������������������������������  !�
������#�����������������1�����"��  !2�

��� �����������**����4�

��� ���������������*����������������������(���������5����6�����

�+� �����������������������'��(�����������������(����4�

��� �������"��������6�

���� ������������������6�

����� ���������+����(��������6�

��%� ��*������������6�

�%� ���$���������������������"6�

�%�� ��������*�������7�������������"6�

�%��� ����������8���������#��(���"�7������(��������"6�

�%���� �����##��������������������"����������6�

��)� �����������������	�������������"6�

�)� �������������������������"6�

�)�� ��9������������"6�

�)��� ���:�������������"6�����

���� �   ��2��2�

��� �����������%����������������$�������7�����*������������   -���2	2��  -;-. -�2�

49



� �

�)���� ��
��������7��&��������"/�

�������������������������������<�������"=�����������������������(�"2�

��$#&���$#��'��� $(!��

��4�-����������������������������������������������<�������=������������������#����������
�������+"������������"������������������������, �������������$�%���#���������   ������(��������
��������'�������)*���������#�#+����������>�*����#�#+�����������������"2�

��� ��+9�������*���(��*���1������?�/��%��"�*��%�����������������������������������������������

#�������"���������������"2�

�1� 7���(��*� ?���� ��� ��� ����� ��� ���� #�������"� ���� *������ ����������/� ��� $������� �������

�������"/� ��� �����*������� 7������ �������"/� ��� ������� 8���� ���� �#��(���"� 7������(�
�������"/��������������������������������9���������������2�

�.� 7���(��*�!�������������������#�������"�����*�������������2�

�,� ��+9���������+>*���(��*��?�������������+���'/�*���(��*��- ������������������/�--�����-�����
��� ��� ����� ���� #�������"� ���"� ���� �����"� ��������/� ��������� ��������� ���� ������� +����(�
��������/������##��������������������"��������������������������������	�������������"2�

�?� ��������'��(�*��%����������������������#�������"����"���������������"�'�������*������(�

�)�����%�������(�#����4�

��� ���*���(��*�-�.�/���������������������<#�����(=4�

��� ��+>*���(��*��+�6�

���� �����+>*���(��*����/����'�����<��������)�����%�@�=�����</�����������##������=6�

�+� *���(��*��3�?�/�3�!������-��-��+�6�

��� ���*���(��*�--���/����'�����<"�����������"@���)�����%����=�

��� ���*���(��*�--�+�/����'����<�)�����%�/=6�����

��� ���*���(��*�-����/����'��������+���&���2�

��)�%%&�!���� ��'�!#*��� �)���(��*+�%*�,�)�� )�

-����������'��(�*��%�����������������**�"��'������"�������*�+����������(������������������"�
'���������*����������������������������'���������������**����4�

��� ���������3.����30�����- ,�������������$�%���#��������-3!����6

�+� ��������1 �1���������������$�%���#��������-3!.���6

��� ��(���������#�����������������������������������-3�����1-�������������$�%���#��������
A�����(�����-303�!�6

��� *���(��*��3�����- ������������!���������%����#��������-33,�$�6�����

��� ��"�(�����������������������������??�������$���������������������"�����-333�#�2

�#,�!���� �� $�)�,� .)�

/�4�-����+9�������*���(��*�����������1�/���������'��(��������������%�&��4�

��� �����������������������������������������������(�������������  -�'�6

�+� ���7���������������������������������������������  -�.�6

���� -3!���2! 2�
���� -3!.��2!2����������1 �1���'������������+"���������1��-��������������$�%���#��������A�����(�����-303���2�.��/�'����������

���#�-����*����-33 2�
�!�� -303��2.�2�
�$�� -33,��2�,2�

�#�� -333��2�32�
�'�� �2	2��  -;1,!,2�

�.�� �2	2��  -;1,!?2�

50



� 1

��� ��� 
�������� 7��&� ���� :������ ����������� ������� ����� ��� ��������� ���(������ ������

�  -���6�����

��� ���7������������������������������������������������  -���2

��� ���������������������� ���*���(��*��-���������������%������������� ���*��*����������������

*��*���������������'���4�

��� ��� ��%����(������ ��� ��"� '������� ����(������ ������ 7���� 1� ��� ��� ������ $�%���#���� ����
�   /�'���� ���� ����(������ �������� ��� ��������'��� ���&� *����� +������ ��� �����'��/�
*�������������������,-�����������4�

��� ����������"����*��������������������������*������(����#�������"�*��%�������������
�����������������������������������*��������������)�����(����������������6�

���� ��� �������"� ��%����� ����� �)�����(� ����� ��� �������� ��� �����*������ ��� #�������"�
*��%��������������������������������������������6����

����� ��� #�������"� *��%������� ��� ��� ����� ��� ��� �������� ��� ���� ������ �**�"� ���

#�#+���������>�*����#�#+�����������������"���������������,-�,��+������������6�

�+� �����9���������������#���������������������������(�����6�����

��� ����**�����(������ ������������������������#������ ���+�������� ����� ���+����� ��� ��������� ���
�����������(�����2�

�1� ��"�������#������������������01�������������$�%���#��������-3!��!��������%�������������
���*��*�������*������+��(�������#�������������������������*��������������������������������������"�

�������/�����������������/��������+����(���������������*������������2�

��(�������+�������������������"����������������##������������������$�%���#����

�������� 
������������������

�����*�����  !� B�*���#����������##������������������$�%���#����

���� �2	2��  -;1,!!2�

���� �2	2��  -;1,!02�
�!�� �������#������������������01�������������$�%���#��������-3!��'��������**����/�+"�����������#��������������������.�-�����

�����+��������������/�������������+���(���%�%��2�

51



� .

��A�B����

�A����B�����B���8���
B����

7����-�

$�������*��%�������

0 �*�$(!��� �� $�� �#*%*#����� �

	�4�-������������**��������+�(������#�#+����������������"2�

��� ��������������������������(�����'������(�������*�����*����*������+���+"������������"����

��������2

�1� 	�����"�������*����+����"������#*�"�'������*��%������������������2�

�.� 	����������4�

<#�����(=�#�������"�#�����(���4�

��� ����������"6�

�+� ����)�����%���������������"6�

��� ��"���� ��� �������"@����� ���� �)�����%�@����##������/� ��+>��##������/� 9����� ��##������/�
9�������+>��##������/�����������##������6�

<#�#+��=��������������>�*����#�#+�����������**�������#�#+��2�

�,� 	�� ��������� ��� �� *����� �������/� ����������� ��� ��� �������"@�� #��������(� �������� ���� ���

�������"@��������������##�����������+������/����*����%��"/���������������������#��������(���������
�������������������##��������������������������������������"������"���������'����������������
��� ��������� ��� ��� *����� �������� ���� '��� ��� ��� ���*����+��� ������ �������� ,,�-��� ��� ��� ������

$�%���#���������   2�

�!�%#

��4�-����+9���������+>*���(��*����������,�/�"���#������#*�"�'������������'���%���"��4�

��� �����������+�����������"�����������"��'��/������������/�������������+��������������
����������'���"�������������������**�������6����

�+� ���/� ����#� ��� ���� ��� (�%�� ��� �#*�������� "��� ���� �����(� ��� �� ��*���������%�� ��� "����
�������"/�

������������������"���������������*����"�����������������������(�"2�

��� ��+9���� ��� ��+>*���(��*�� �1�� ���� �.�/� ��������� ����� ���� �%�� ������� ��� ��������� ��� "����
�����������������'�������������"���������������*����"2�

�1� 	�� ��������� ��� �%��(� ������� ��� ��������� ��� �������� ��� "���� ��������� ��*����"/� *���(��*��

1������/�,�����?����������%��������/������"������ ��#�/�'���������������������������������#�����
������������'���"����%��+�������%�����2�

�.� �������� ��� '��� ���� ����� �**����� �'����� ���� ��� �������� ��� "���� ��������� ��*����"� ���
��������#��������������+>*���(��*��1�����������������#�����������������'���"����������%������

���������(� ��� �������� "��� ��##������ +������ ��� ����� "��� ���&� ������/� +��� ���� '��� "��� ����
���%���������������������2�

�,� 5����"��������������*���������%�����"�����������"4�

��� �����������%����������������$�������7�����*������������  -���2	2��  -;-. -�2�

52



� ,

��� ��������������%�����������"/�"���#���/�'��������(���������������������"/���#*�"�'���

����������������"@�����������������6����

�+� ��� ��"� ����� +��"/� "��� #���/� '��� �����(� ���� ���� ����� +��"/� ��#*�"� '��� "����

�������"@�� ����� ��� �������/� �)��*�� ���� �������� ��� ��� ���������� '��� ��"� ����� ��'����
�+��(����������'������������+��"�#�"�+����+9���2�

�# #*�&���&�.���� )�

-�4�-������#����������������'������*���2�

��� ����#�������4�

��� �����"���(�'���#�"�������"�����������"����+�������"��������C�����"������#���������

�������������������11��������C�����"������  ?����6

�+� +���"���"�*�����6�

��� ����#�������������#*���������#��������"�*������'�������������&��"����+�4�

��� ����#*�������/�

���� ��'������/����

����� ��%��%�����������#�����������������"���%����(���������*��������(�/�

����������������������(������������#�#+������������(�"������������������������#*�"�'���

����������������"@�����������������6����

��� �����"���(�'�����#*��#�������������&��"������#*��#��������#*��������"���������'��

'��&����/�������+�������/�"�����������"2�

�1� 	�� ��������� ���*����������������� ���� ��������*�������7�������������"/� ���� ���*��*��������

��+>*���(��*� ������� �����'��'��&� ���/�������+�������/� ����������"��������#��� �������������
*�������������2�

/������#�������4�

��� ��������� �����#������(�%��� ���"��� ��������������+"���"���/���� �����#��������C������+"�
"��� '��� "��� +����%�/� ��� ��(�� �������+�"� ��� +�� �'���/� ��� ��� �� ������������� ������/�
�)��*��'���4�

��� "����%������������������*�������������������(�%����6�

���� "���������C������+"���'���������6�

����� ��� ����������� ��� #���� ��� �� ����� *���"� ���� ��� *��*���� ��� �+������(� *������������

��%���� *��%����� ���� ��� ����� *���"� �(����� ���� ��� ��������� ��� �����#������ ��� ��"�
�����*�����6����

��%� ����������������4�

���� �������+�������������*�+������������6�����

�++� #�������(������������������#*�������'�������������+�����C����#�����������

�������"6����

�+� *��%�����������*���������#�(�����(����������������#���������'�������*������������������

+"���'2�

�������#����������������"�������������#������'����������������+�"�+����(���������+���(��(�
"���������������������"�����������*���2�

1�����4�

��� #���� ���� ���� ��� ����#*�� ��� ���� "���� *�������� ��� ��#�#+��� �#*��*���"� ��� ������� ��� ���

�����������"�������������"������*�����/������%����(����������%����(�6�����

�+� #���/�'�������(�������������(��������+"��������������������������"�����������"4�

���� �  ?��212�

53



� ?

��� ������������������'���"�����������"@���������+�����C����#����6�

���� ���������������������������������������#*��*���"�����*���������*��*��������������(�

*���"�*���������*��*�����6�����

��� #���� �%�� ��(���� �����"��**����+����������������"������ ��� 7�+�����"�#���� ������ ���

������$�%���#��������-30?���2

�4�-��5��� ������(� ���������� ��� ��"�#������ "���#���� �%�� ��(���� ��� ��"� ����%���� ��%����
*��%��������"���+"4�

��� "�����������"@����������������������6����

�+� "�����������"@��#��������(��������/�

'������������������������(�*����������������������������"�������2�

��� ����#����(�%������������������������������������������'�����"���������"���C����#���������
��"��������+����������������C����#������#*�����+"�"�����������"2�

7������

	���������

2#*)� �&�� �#*#)�)�


�4�-�������%����*����������������������"�+�����������"�����������"�'���������4�

��� ����������������������&��"����������4�

��� ��"� +��"� ��� '��� "��� ���� �� #�#+��� ��� ��� �� *�������� ��� (������� �������� ���
#���(�#�����������'���"��������**������������#�������+"�"�����������"6�

���� ��"�+��"4�

���� �)�������(����������������*�+����������6�

�++� ������������������+���*��*����6����

���� �������'����*�����*���*��*����� ��������� ��� �������������*�+�����*���������

*����"����������(���"�*���������*���"����������������/�

���'���"���������#�#+�����������*�����������(������������������#���(�#���6�

����� ��"��#*��"#�������+�������������������+"�"��6�

��%� ��"�*���������+��"�'���#*��"���������**�������"��6�

�%� ��"�*���������+��"/����������������%�����������"/�'�����#������*�"#�������"���
��� ���*���� ��� "���� ��������� ��� ��"� �)*������ ��������� +"� "��� ��� ����"��(� ���� "����

������6�

�%�� ��"�*���������+��"�'�������*��������+�������������������"�����������"@������/�����

���'�#�"����%����+���������������������������������������������������*���������+��"�
�����)�����������#�����%��������D�,/   ����������������������������������������

��*������'���%�����������'���6�

�%��� ��"��������������(����/����%��������'��&��#����+��'����"�����������"�����"��������

���#����'���"���������*������/�����#*��"����'���"�����������#�����������������/�
�����*���������+��"�������������*������*�����������*���(��*��%��6�

�%���� ������������������"�*���������#�'�#�"����%�������%�����(���������*������"�'������
����#�����%�����������������D�,6�

��)� ��"���������"�����������"@����������'���"����%����+������������������6�

���� -30?��2- 2�

54



� !

�)� ��"������'�������������������"�����������"�����"������/���������#����'���"�������

��*������/�����#*��"����'���"�����������#�����������������/������*���������+��"����
���������*������*�����������*���(��*��%�����/����������6�

�)�� ��"�������������������"@�����������'���"����%���� ������������������ 9�����"�'���
��������������*"������0���"��������(��6����

�+� �� ��������� ��� ��������� ��� ���� +��������#�(�� �������+�"� +�� ��(������ ��� ��������(� "����
'���>+���(� ��� ���������� *�������� ��� ��� '���>+���(� ��� ���������� *�������� ��� �� ����%����

*�����������(��������)������������#�9����"���4�

��� ��������������������������'���������������%����������'���������������������)�*�"���/�
����*�"���� ��� ���+������� ��� ��� ���������� ��%������ ��� '���/� ��� ��� ����� #�"� +�/�
���������+"������������6�

���� ������������������$���������������������"�����������������)�*�"���/�����*�"�������
���+�����������������#+�"������������"����������+"������������6����

����� ���� ���� ����� ������� ����� �������� ��)� *�"���/� ����*�"���� ��� ���+������� ��� "����
�������"@������2�

��� 	����+>*���(��*��-��+�/�������%����*��������4�

��� ��#�#+������"������#��"������"�*������'���'�#�"����%���������������������6����

�+� ��"�*���������+��"�'���#*��"���������**�����������*������/���"����#����'�����"�

������*������/������"���#*��"����'�����"��������������6�

��� ��"� *������ ��� +��"� ��� '�#� ���� *������� �%�� �� +���������� ��������� ��� �� ������ ���

������������)������(������#�����%��������D�,/   6����

��� ��"�+��"�������"*��������+��������+>*���(��*��-���������������2�

��)!&�)(*#��'�%#*)� �&�� �#*#)�)�

��4�-����+9���������+>*���(��*����������!�/�'����"����%����*����������������������"�+��������
���"�����������"�����"������������#�����(����"�����������"����'������+���������������������/�

"���#��������������������#�����(�����)�������������������������������������������##����#�������
�����������������/����'���������������+���#����**�����2�

��� 5����"����%����*����������������������"�+�����������"�����������"�'����������� ������ ���
��&��"�������������*������������+������*���(��*�0�-�����������0�-������������/�"�����������"����������

��� ���#�����(� ��� �)�������� ���� ������� ��� ���� ��������� '��� "��� �������� ���#�����(� ��� ����
+�������2�

�1� 5����"����%����*����������������������"�+���������������������"��������"*��#������������
*���(��*�0�-�����%����/�"�����������������������������������)������������������������������#�����(�
���������������'�����(��������#�������������"�����+��������������������#�����(2�

�.� ��+>*���(��*��-�����"��**�����'����"��������'���������(���������+�"����+���'����������
�)��������������*����������������2�

�,� 5���� "��� �%�� �� *�������� ��������� +��/� +"� %������ ��� *���(��*� -./� �������%�� �����#������
�������(����������������(�����������"�����������"@����(���������#�#+���@����������/�"���#�������������

������#�����(�����"����%����*����������������/�+�������������������������������%�������#���������
���#�����(2�

�?� ��+9���� ���*���(��*�-��-��+�/�'����"����%����*�������� ��������� �����"�+�����������"����
�������"�����"����%��#��������)�����%�������������������������� ����+�������/�"���#�����������

������"�'������������#��������������������������������)����������������������������������2�

�!� 	������*���(��*/�<�)�����%����������=�������+��������������������������'�����"���(���������
#����+"������������"���������������������������������������$�%���#���������   ���2

��� ��������������������������)�����%�������(�#�����������������	����#����������(��������(�����������2	��   ;1�!��2�

55



� 0

2*#3($�!��&�� �#*#)��.# #*�&&+�

	��4�-����+9���� ��� ��+>*���(��*� ���/� '���� "����%�� �� *�������� ��������� ��� ��"� +�������� ���
"�����������"�"���������%����*��9������������������������+��������'�����������������������'���

�� #�#+��� ��� ��� *�+���� '��� &��'���(�� ��� ��� ����%���� ������ '����� �������+�"� ��(���� ��� ���
��(���������������������&��"����*��9������"����9��(�#����������*�+������������2�

��� ������������%����*��9����������������������"�+���������������������"�'��������+�������4�

��� ����� ���� ������� "���� ���������� *�������� ��� ��� ���������� *�������� ��� �� *������ ��� +��"�
������+������*���(��*�06�

�+� ����� ���� ������� ��� ��� �����#����(� ��� ��"� �**��%��/� �������/� �������/� *��#������� ���
��(�������������������������"��������"�*���������+��"�������+������*���(��*�06����

��� ���������������������������"�����������"�������*������4�

��� �����(/�'����"��������� ����������"�����������"�*��%����� ���� ����� �������������
�����������*����������"����"����������"���������6�

���� ������#�������������������*�����������%�����(��)*�����/�'����"���������*���������
(����������������������������#�����������/����������*������(�%����������������/��������

�����������*����������"�������������'������������������6�

����� ��������"� ���&� *�"�������7����E	���� ��� ������� �������"�������+������� ����:��������
����-33�/�'����"���������������*����/����������������������������*����/�����*�"6�

��%� �������'����/�*�"#�����������#���"�(�%������#�#+���6�

�%� ��"�����#������������(�%������#�#+���6�����

�%�� ������(�����������)������*����*�����������������$�%���#����8�����������-33�2�

2*#3($�!��&�� �#*#)�)��*�)� .�� �*#&���� �����,#*,�#4�� $�)!*(�� +�!�""���##)�

		������ ����� �%�� �� *��9�������� ��������� ��� ��"� +�������� +������ ��� �%��%��'� ���� �������"�
��##���������"�����������"������������+>��##�����������������##�������'���4�

��� ����+������������������������������#�����'������#*��#��������������������������&���+"�

"���� �������"@�� �)�����%�� ��� ������� ��� "���� �������"@�� ��##������/� ��+>��##������/�
9�������##����������9�������+>��##������6�����

�+� ��� ��� ��#�� ��� ��������� '��� #���� ��� ������� '��� ��&��/� "��� '���� �� #�#+��� ��� ���
�)�����%�/���##�����/���+>��##�����/�9�������##���������9�������+>��##������#���������

���*���(��*���������"���'����*�������'����������������'���#��������������'�����&��2�

�''#!���'�%*#3($�!��&�� �#*#)�)�� �%�*��!�%���� �

	��4�-����+9���� �����+>*���(��*����/�'����"����%����*��9�������� ��������������"�+�����������
"�����������"4�

��� "���#����'�����'����#�������#������#+���'������#�����(�����������(����+��������
���+���(����4�

��� ����������'������+>*���(��*������**����/��##�������"�������#�&��(���*������������/�

���'����(�C������������(�%��(��%������6�

���� ��� ��"� ����� ����/� '���%��� ��� +���#��� �**������ ���� ��� +�������� ��� +���(�

������������������#�����(6�

�������"����%���+������������*������������#�"�����������"@��������������##�����6�

�+� "���#���������)��������)�����%�������������������������������+�������6�����

��� "���#�����������&��#*��*���"��������������������������+��������+�������2�

��� 5����"����%����*��9�������� ��������� �����"�+�����������"�����������"/�"���#�"����������

#�����(� ���������(���#�����(���� ����%��%��'����� �������"���##��������� "�����������"������� ��
��+>��##������ ��� ���� �� ��##������� +��� ���"� ���� ��� *��*���� ��� #�&��(� ��*������������/�

56



� 3

���'����(�C������������(�%��(��%��������������(�������+�������/�*��%������������*�+�������������

����'����������������#�����(����������#��*��*���/�'���������������������"���(���������'���2�

7����1�

��(���������������#+���@�	���������

�#.�)�*���� ��'�"#"�#*)5�� �#*#)�)�

	-�4�-����+9�������*���(��*�-./�"���#���/�'������0���"����4�

��� ���������+���(����*����+"�����**��������"�����������"6����

�+� "�����������������**����#���������������'�����������������/�

��(������ ���"�����������"@����(���������#�#+���@������������#������������������������0-�-����� ���
������$�%���#���������   �������������"����*�������� ����������'������"������'�����������(��"�

#��������� ���*���(��*�0�-����/�+"�*��%����(�'�����������������������"�����������"@��#��������(�
�������2

��� ��+9�������*���(��*�-./�"���#���/�'������0���"�����+���#��(��'���������"���'�*��������
���������������(�������"�*�������� �����������(��������������*���(��*��-�/���(����������������� ����

��'�*�������� ���������������(��+"�*��%����(�'�����������������������"�����������"@��#��������(�
�������2

�# )���,#�� '�*"���� �

	/�4�-��5����"������������ ���� ��� �����#�������������(� ��� ��"����"����*�������� ���������� ���
�������%�� �����#�����/� ����"�����������"@��#��������(� �������� �(����/� "������������ �������� ����

�����#������'�����(�������(�������������/���/������������#�"�+�/������(��������� ���������������
*���(��*�-12�

��� ����#���/�'������0���"�����+���#��(��'���������"����(����������#��������'���#�����
���� �����#������ �)������� ������ *���(��*� �-�� ��� ��� ���(��� �������%�� �����#�����/� �����"� "����

�������"@��#��������(�����������&��(�������������#������+��������������"�����������"@����(������
���#�#+���@����������2�

�1� 	����������/�<�������%�������#�����=�#����������#������'�����%����+����"��������*�������+"�
���*�+�����������/���������&��"����������/��������������&�����"��������*������'����%���'���"���#�"�

+����+9���������%���������������#�������2�

57



� - 

�62�������7������

!"�� ������� �����
�����������#����$�

��� ������ ��������� �� #����� ����� ��� �������� ��� ��(����� ��� �������� '��� ��� �)*������ ���

#�#+���� ���� ��>�*���� #�#+���� ��� ����%���� ����������� ��� ��(����� ���� *������ ����������� ���
��(���������5����2������������"�������������*�'�������������������������������������, �������
������$�%���#���������   2���������������,-���� �������/������������"�#�������*������������
���������**�"��(� ��� ����#�#+����������>�*����#�#+����'���#���� �����*��������"�#�������"�

*��%�����������������2���������������,-�,�/�'��������������"�������������*�������������'�����
��)�#�������������������#��(�����������/����#�������"�*��%������������������'�����**�"�������
#�#+�����������������"�������������*��������'������2�

�*��!&#� 	� *��%����� ���� ���� ������ �**����� ��� �*�������� ����������� ��� ��(����� ���� *������
����������������(���������5����2�

�*��!&#���*��%�����������#����������������������������������������������/������������'������
����*��%�����������#�������"2�

�*��!&#�-�����**����������������"�*��%��������������(�������
����������������������$�%���#����
������������#�#+���@����������2�

�*��!&#�/���%�&��4�

�����������������������������������������������(�������������  -���6

���7���������������������������������������������  -���6

���

���7������������������������������������������������  -�$�2

�������������������������%������������������������#������������##������+��������������'���
�����'������������*��������**������������������"2�

��������.�1��*��%����������������#������������������01�������������$�%���#��������-3!�������

�%����������������*��*�������*������+��(�������#�������������������������*���������������2�

	������!8#$(&#�����8#��*$#*4

2�*�.*�%8�	������������*��%������������������**����������"�#�#+����������������"���������
������������*����+����"��������#�#+��������#*�"�'����������2�

2�*�.*�%8��������������*��%������������������**�����'���%�����#�#+�����������(����������
��� ��������� ��*����"/� ���� ��� ��������� ��� �������� ��� �� #�#+��@�� *��%���� ��*����"� ��� ����� ���"�
�**�����'������������������������������������#��������%������2������������"/�'������#�#+������
�����(��������*���������%���������������������"/���������#�����������������+���%������������"@��

����/���������������������+9������������������%�����������"@������/�����������������������������"�
�����+��"���������������'�����"��������(����+��(������2�

2�*�.*�%8� -� ��� ��� ����� *��%����� ���� #�#+���� #���� ������ ������ '��� ���*���� ���� ���� ���
��"���(�'���#�"�������������������"����+������C�����"���(��������/����'�����#*��#��������
�#*��������"���� �����'��'��&���������������"����+���"���"������� ����#����*���������%��%������
���������������������2�

���� �2	2��  -;1,!,2�

���� �2	2��  -;1,!?2�
�!�� �2	2��  -;1,!!2�

�$�� �2	2��  -;1,!02�

���
��������7��&�����:��������������������������������������������(����� �������  -�!�6

58



� --

2�*�.*�%8�/������������*��%���������#�#+����#��������'������������������������������������

�����#��������"��%����C����������#��������*��%�������������#�(�����(����������������#���������
'�����"�������������2�

2�*�.*�%8� �� ��� ��� ����� *��%����� ���� �� #�#+���#���� ���� �������� �#����� ��� ������� ��� ��
#������'���������+���(�����������������"�����������*���2�

2�*�.*�%8�1������������*��%�����������#�#+���#���������������������*���������#*��*���"����
(���� ��� ��%����(�� ��� ������� �� �����%����(�� ���� ���� '��� ����(� ��� ���������(� ��� ���� ��� ���
�������"@�� ���������/� �� ��� ��� #���� ���� ��� ����������� '��� ��� �������"@�� �������+���
��C����#����/�#���� ���� *��#��� ����� ���������� ��� +�� ����� ���� *��������� *��*����� ����#���� �%��
��(�����������������������"���������7�+�����"2�

2�*�.*�%8�������������*��%�����������#�#+���#�����%����(���������%����(�%���+"���������
��������������������#��������(�������������#����(�%������������������������#���2�

2�*�.*�%8�
������������*��%���������������#�������'����������������*����������������2�

2�*�.*�%8� �� ��� ��� ���� *��%����� ���� (�������"� �� #�#+��� '��� �� *�������� ��������� ��� ��"�
+���������������������������"�#�������������������������������"�#�����(����'������+�����������
����������2�

2�*�.*�%8�	�������������*��%���������(�������"���#�#+���'�����*���������������������������
*��9�������� ��������� ��� ��� ��������� ������+����(������+"���#�#+������ ���*�+������� ��� ��(���������
������������&��"����*��9���������������9��(�#����������*�+������������2����*���(��*�*��%���������

����*�������������#����������#�#+���#�"���(�����#�������������%��(���*��9����������������2�

2�*�.*�%8�		������������*��%�����������#�#+���'��'�����%��%������#�&��(���������������
��&��(� ������� ��� �� #������ #���� ���� +�� ��%��%��� ��� ��� �%��%��'� ���� �������"� ��##�����@��
���������������������������������������2�

2�*�.*�%8�	�������������*��%�����������#�#+���'�����*��9�����������������#���/�������/�����
�)�#*��/������������#�&��(���*�����������������#�#+����������*�+�����������������'������#�&��

��*������������� ��� ���� #�����/� ��� �� ��� ��� ��� �+������� �� ���*��������/� '�����'� ���#� ��"�
#�����(�����'������+�����������+���(�����������/�����#�������� �#*��*���"���������������������
������������������+�������2�

2�*�.*�%8�	-������������*��%�����������#�#+���#���������"����#��������(������������������
���*��������������������� ��"����(��������������������#���������+����������2�

2�*�.*�%8�	/� ��� ��������*��%����� ���� ��#�#+���#�"������"� ���#��������(��������� ��� ��"�
�������%�������#����������%����+����"����'���������*�+�����������/���������&��"����������/�����������
���&� ���� ��� #�#+��� ��� �� *������ '�� ��%��� '��� �#� ��� ���#�"� +�� ��+9������ ��� %�������� ���
����#�������2�

59



D12  

����'����*"��(���  !�

7�����������*�+�������������F�+"�������������"����������#�����
����������������"�������*���������������������������/���������������A�����9���"@��

���������"������������G����@��7������������������7�����#���2�

� ? !� � .;�  !� -! ? !�� � -3,0,�

60



Code of recommended practice on local
authority publicity

61



On 5th May 2006 the responsibilities of the Office of the Deputy Prime Minister (ODPM) transferred to the Department for
Communities and Local Government.

Department for Communities and Local Government
Eland House
Bressenden Place
London SW1E 5DU
Telephone: 020 7944 4400
Website: www.communities.gov.uk

Documents downloaded from the www.communities.gov.uk website areCrown Copyright unless otherwise stated, in which
case copyright is assigned to Queens Printer and Controller of Her Majestys Stationery Office.

Copyright in the typographical arrangement rests with the Crown.

This publication, excluding logos, may be reproduced free of charge in any format or medium for research, private
study or for internal circulation within an organisation. This is subject to it being reproduced accurately and not
used in a misleading context. The material must be acknowledged as Crown copyright and the title of the
publication specified.

Any other use of the contents of this publication would require a copyright licence. Please apply for a Click-Use
Licence for core material at www.opsi.gov.uk/click-use/system/online/pLogin.asp or by writing to the Office
of Public Sector Information, Information Policy Team, St Clements House, 2-16 Colegate, Norwich NR3 1BQ.
Fax: 01603 723000 or e-mail: HMSOlicensing@cabinet-office.x.gsi.gov.uk.

This publication is only available online via the Communities and Local Government website: www.communities.gov.uk

Alternative formats under Disability Discrimination Act (DDA):if you require this publication in an alternative format please
email alternativeformats@communities.gsi.gov.uk

62



Contents

Code of Recommended Practice on Local Authority Publicity

CODE OF RECOMMENDED PRACTICE ON LOCAL AUTHORITY PUBLICITY
INTRODUCTION

CODE OF RECOMMENDED PRACTICE

Subject matter

Costs

Content and style

Dissemination

Advertising

Recruitment advertising

Publicity about individual members of an authority

Timing of Publicity

Assistance to others for publicity

ALTERATIONS TO THE CODE OF RECOMMENDED PRACTICE ON LOCAL AUTHORITY
PUBLICITY

ANNEX

ALTERATIONS TO THE CODE OF RECOMMENDED PRACTICE ON LOCAL AUTHORITY
PUBLICITY, WHICH APPLY TO LOCAL AUTHORITIES IN ENGLAND ONLY

CODE OF RECOMMENDED PRACTICE

Subject matter

Costs

Content and Style

Dissemination

Advertising

63



Recruitment Advertising

Individual Councillors

Elections, referendums and petitions

Assistance to others for publicity

64



Circular 20/88
(Department of the Environment)

Circular 16/88
(Scottish Development Department)

Circular 30/88
(Welsh Office)

Joint Circular from the

Department of the Environment
2 Marsham Street, London SW1P 3EB

Scottish Development Department
New St. Andrew's House, Edinburgh EH1 3SZ

Welsh Office
Cathays Park, Cardiff CF1 3NQ

15 August 1988

Code of Recommended Practice on Local Authority Publicity

1. We are directed by the Secretary of State for the Environment, the Secretary of State for
Scotland and the Secretary of State for Wales to draw the attention of your authority to the
annexed code of recommended practice on local authority publicity, which they have issued
under their powers under section 4 of the Local Government Act 1986, as amended by section
27 of the Local Government Act 1988.

2. Section 4 provides for the Secretary of State to issue codes of recommended practice as
regards the content, style, distribution and cost of local authority publicity, and such other
matters as he thinks appropriate. That section, as amended, also requires that local authorities
shall have regard to the provisions of any such code in coming to any decision on publicity.

3. The code has been prepared following consultations with the associations of local
authorities, the local authorities with whom the Secretaries of State thought consultation
desirable, and other bodies concerned. A draft of the code has been laid before, and approved
by a resolution of, each House of Parliament.

4. The code has no significant implications for either local authority expenditure or manpower.

A J C SIMCOCK, Assistant Secretary
MRS G M STEWART, Assistant Secretary
D M TIMLIN, Senior Principal

The Chief Executive

County Councils in England and Wales
Regional and Islands Councils in Scotland

65



District Councils in England, Wales and Scotland
London Borough Councils
The Council of the Isles of Scilly

The Town Clerk, City of London

The Chief Officer

Metropolitan County Passenger Transport Authorities
Metropolitan County Police Authorities
Metropolitan County Fire and Civil Defence Authorities
The London Fire and Civil Defence Authority

The Education Officer and Chief Executive, Inner London Education Authority

The Chief Executive, The Broads Authority

The Clerk

Parish Councils in England
Community Councils in Wales

[DOE LGR/57/5/02]
[SDD L/ACT/217/2]
[WO LG/49/3/49]

66



CODE OF RECOMMENDED PRACTICE ON LOCAL AUTHORITY PUBLICITY
INTRODUCTION

Status of the Code
1. This Code is issued by the Secretaries of State for the Environment, Scotland and Wales in
pursuance of their powers under section 4(1) of the Local Government Act 1986. The Code
was drawn up following the consultations with interested parties in local government required
by section 4(4) of the Act. It has been approved by a resolution of each House of Parliament.
Local authorities are required by section 4(1) of the Act as amended by section 27 of the Local
Government Act 1988 to have regard to the Code in coming to any decision on publicity.

Why have a Code?
2. Local authorities are accountable to their electorate. Local accountability requires local
understanding. This will be promoted by local authorities explaining their objectives and
policies to their electors and ratepayers. In recent years authorities have increasingly used
publicity to keep the public informed, and to encourage greater participation. Local authorities
also need to tell the public about the services which they provide. Increasingly, local authorities
see the task of making the public aware of the services available as an essential part of
providing all kinds of services. Good, effective publicity, aimed at improved public awareness
of a council's activities, is to be welcomed. This Code is not intended to discourage such
publicity.

3. Publicity is, however, a sensitive matter in any political environment, because of the impact
which it can have. Expenditure on publicity by some local authorities has been significant. It is
essential, therefore, to ensure that local authority decisions on publicity are properly made, in
accordance with clear principles of good practice. The purpose of the Code is to set out such
principles. It reflects the conventions which should apply to all publicity at public expense, and
which traditionally have applied in both central and local government.

4. The principles set out below recognise the political nature of local government. They take
account of the fact that some local authority publicity will deal with issues that are controversial
because of particular local circumstances, or because of a difference of view between political
parties locally or nationally. The principles do not prohibit the publication of information on
politically sensitive or controversial issues, nor stifle public debate. They set out the matters a
local authority should consider, to safeguard both the proper use of public funds and those
members of the public at whom publicity is directed. They apply to all publicity, but some
aspects will be especially relevant to publicity which deals with controversial or sensitive
issues. The underlying objective of the Code is to ensure the proper use of public funds for
publicity.

Scope of the Code
5. The Code is not concerned with the interpretation of section 2 of the Local Government Act
1986. (That section provides that a local authority shall not publish (or assist others to publish)
material which, in whole or in part, appears to be designed to affect public support for a
political party.) The Code is concerned with all the other publicity which a local authority may
publish. In particular, it highlights factors which should be borne in mind in decisions on
publicity which deals with matters or issues which are, politically or otherwise, controversial,

67



but which are not prohibited by section 2.

6. Section 6 of the 1986 Act defines publicity as "any communication, in whatever form,
addressed to the public at large or to a section of the public". The Code will therefore be
relevant across the whole range of local authorities' work. It covers all decisions by a local
authority on publicity and most public relations activities, such as paid advertising and leaflet
campaigns, and local authority sponsorship of exhibitions and conferences, as well as
assistance to others to issue publicity.

7. The Code has no relevance to the methods which a local authority may use to make its
views known where these do not involve publicity in the sense of the 1986 Act.

8. The Code does not affect the ability of local authorities to assist charities and voluntary
organisations which need to issue publicity as part of their work, but it requires local
authorities, in giving such assistance, to consider the principles on which the Code is based,
and to apply them accordingly.

9. By virtue of section 6(6) of the 1986 Act, nothing in the Code is to be construed as applying
to any decision by a local authority in the discharge of their duties under the Local Government
(Access to Information) Act 1985.

68



CODE OF RECOMMENDED PRACTICE

Subject matter

1. Local authorities have a variety of statutory powers which enable them to produce publicity
and circulate it widely, or to assist others to do so. Those commonly used include the powers
in sections 111, 142, 144 and 145 of the Local Government Act 1972, sections 69, 88 and 90
of the Local Government (Scotland) Act 1973 and sections 15 and 16 of the Local Government
and Planning (Scotland) Act 1982; but there are several others.

2. Some of these powers relate directly to the publishing authority's functions. Others give a
more general discretion to publicise matters which go beyond an authority's primary
responsibilities. For example, sections 142(1A) of the 1972 Act and 88(1) of the 1973 Act
authorise local authorities to arrange for the publication within their area of information as to
the services available in the area provided by them or by other local authorities; and Section 54
of the Public Health (Control of Disease) Act 1984 empowers local authorities to arrange for
the publication within their area of information on questions relating to health or disease.

3. This discretion provides an important degree of flexibility, but also heightens the need for a
responsible approach to expenditure decisions.

4. In considering the subject areas in which publicity is to be issued, the following matters will
be important:

(i) the publicity should be relevant to the functions of the authority.
(ii) it should not duplicate unnecessarily publicity produced by central government,
another local authority or another public authority.
(iii) in areas where central government, another tier of local government, or another
public authority have the primary service or policy responsibility, local authorities
should issue publicity only on matters that are directly relevant to their own
functions.

Costs

5. Local authorities are accountable to the public for the efficiency and effectiveness of their
expenditure, in the first instance through the audit arrangements.

6. For publicity, as for all other expenditure, the aim should therefore be to achieve the greatest
possible cost-effectiveness.

7. To achieve this, there may well be cases where the benefit of higher expenditure to gain
better presentation or improve other aspects of publicity will justify the extra cost.

8. Local authorities should therefore always have in mind the extent to which expert advice is

69



needed for publicity.

9. In some cases publicity may justify its cost by virtue of savings which it achieves. More
commonly it will be necessary to take a view of the importance of the unquantifiable benefits as
compared with other uses to which the resources could be put.

10. In deciding whether the nature and scale of proposed publicity, and consequently its cost,
are justified, the following matters will be relevant:

(i) whether the publicity is statutorily required or is discretionary.
(ii) where it is statutorily required, the purpose to be served by the publicity.
(iii) whether the expenditure envisaged is in keeping with the purpose and
expected effect of the publicity.

Content and style

11. Local authorities produce a variety of publicity material. It ranges from factual information
about the services provided by the authority, designed to inform clients or attract new ones, to
material necessary to the administration of the authority, such as staff recruitment advertising.
There will also be publicity to explain or justify the council's policies either in general, as in the
annual report, or on specific topics, for example as background to consultation on the line
chosen for a new road.

12. Any publicity describing the council's policies and aims should be as objective as possible,
concentrating on facts or explanation or both.

13. Where publicity is used to comment on, or respond to, the policies and proposals of central
government, other local authorities or other public authorities, the comment or response should
be objective, balanced, informative, and accurate. It should aim to set out the reasons for the
council's views, and should not be a prejudiced, unreasoning or political attack on the policies
or proposals in question or on those putting them forward. Slogans alone will not be an
adequate means of justifying or explaining the authority's views or their policy decisions.

14. Publicity relating to the provision of a service should concentrate on providing factual
information about the service.

15. In some cases promotional publicity may be appropriate - for example about the local
authority's sports and leisure facilities or about tourist attractions.

16. Publicity touching on issues that are controversial, or on which there are arguments for and
against the views or policies of the council, should be handled with particular care. It should not
over-simplify facts, issues or arguments. Again, it is unlikely that slogans alone will achieve the
necessary degree of balance, or capture the complexities of opposing political arguments.

17. Publicity should not attack, nor appear to undermine, generally accepted moral standards.

18. Publicity campaigns by local authorities are appropriate in some circumstances: for
example, to promote the effective and efficient use of local services and facilities, or to attract

70



tourists or investment. Publicity campaigns may also be an appropriate means of influencing
public behaviour or attitudes on such matters as health, safety, crime prevention or race
relations.

19. Legitimate concern is, however, caused by the use of public resources for some forms of
campaigns which are designed to have a persuasive effect. Publicity campaigns can provide
an appropriate means of ensuring that the local community is properly informed about a matter
relating to a function of the local authority and about the authority's policies in relation to that
function and the reasons for them. But local authorities, like other public authorities, should not
use public funds to mount publicity campaigns whose primary purpose is to persuade the
public to hold a particular view on a question of policy.

Dissemination

20. The main purposes of local authority publicity are to increase public awareness of the
services provided by the authority and the functions it performs; to explain to electors and
ratepayers the reasons for particular policies and priorities; and in general to improve local
accountability.

21. Information and publicity produced by the council should be made available to all those
who want or need it. Local authorities should not discriminate in favour of, or against, persons
or groups in the compilation and distribution of material for reasons not connected with the
efficiency and effectiveness of issuing the publicity.

22. Where material is distributed on matters closely affecting vulnerable sections of the
community - for example, the elderly - particular care should be taken to ensure that it is
unambiguous, readily intelligible, and unlikely to cause needless concern to those reading,
seeing or listening to it.

23. Local authority newspapers, leaflets, and other publicity distributed unsolicited from house
to house are inevitably more intrusive than publicity available on application to the council.

24. Publicity that reaches the public unsolicited should be targeted as far as practicable on
those whose interests are clearly and directly affected by its content.

25. Material touching on politically controversial issues should be distributed unsolicited only
where there is a strong case for letting a particular group of people have information of direct
concern to them and no other equally efficient and effective means can be found.

26. Local authority newspapers or information bulletins are a special case. They are often a
cost-effective means of disseminating information, but they may touch on controversial issues.
If they do, they should treat such issues in an objective and informative way, bearing in mind
the principles set out in paragraphs 11 -19 of the Code.

27. Where it is important for information to reach a particular target audience, consideration
should be given to using the communications networks of other bodies, for example those of
voluntary organisations.

71



Advertising

28. Advertising, especially on billboards or on television and radio, is a highly intrusive
medium. It can also be expensive. It may however provide a cost effective, efficient means of
conveying public information to the widest possible audience. Advertising on local radio
networks has, for example, been used as a relatively inexpensive means of telling potential
clients about local authority services. Advertising can also be the most cost-effective means of
publicising a local authority's activities on tourism, and in the area of economic development
generally.

29. The primary criterion for decisions on whether to use advertising should be cost-
effectiveness.

30. Advertisements are not normally likely to be appropriate as a means of explaining policy or
commenting on proposals, since an advertisement by its nature summarises information,
compresses issues and arguments, and markets views and opinions.

31. Advertising in media which cover an area significantly wider than that of the authority is not
likely to be an appropriate means of conveying information about a local authority's policies as
opposed to attracting people to the authority's area or to use its facilities.

32. The attribution of advertising material leaflets and other forms of publicity that reach the
public unsolicited should be clearly set out.

33. It is not acceptable, in terms of public accountability, to use the purchase of advertising
space as a disguised means of subsidy to a voluntary, industrial or commercial organisation.
Such support should be given openly through the normal grant arrangements. However, the
conditions attached to a grant may require the provision of publicity, including publicity for the
work of the authority.

34. Any decision to take advertising space in a publication produced by a voluntary, industrial
or commercial organisation should be made only on the grounds that it provides an effective
and efficient means of securing the desired publicity.

35. Local authorities should never use advertising as a means of giving financial support to any
publication associated with a political party.

Recruitment advertising

36. Local authorities have respected in their staff employment policies the tradition of a
politically impartial public service. Their recruitment publicity should reflect this tradition, and
the fact that local authority staff are expected to serve the authority as a whole, whatever its
composition from time to time.

37. The content of recruitment publicity and the media chosen for advertising job vacancies
should be in keeping with the objective of maintaining the politically independent status of local

72



authority staff.

38. Advertisements for staff should not be placed in party political publications.

Publicity about individual members of an authority

39. The functions of a local authority are discharged by the council corporately. It is therefore
inappropriate for public resources to be used to publicise individual councillors.

40. In the interests of public accountability, however, it may be appropriate to give publicity to
the views or activities of individual members when they are representing the council as a
whole: for example, when the chairman of a council speaks or acts as the first citizen of the
whole community, or when a chairman of a committee opens a new scheme or launches a
policy approved by the council or by his committee on the council's behalf.

41. For the same reason a local authority may justifiably in certain circumstances issue press
releases reporting statements made by individual members. Examples of cases where such
press releases may he appropriate are as reports of the discussion at the meetings of the
council or committees, or quotations of comments made by leading members of the council in
response to particular events which call for a particularly speedy reaction from the council.

42. This does not prevent a member of staff of a local authority from responding to questions
about individual members, since that is not publicity as defined in the 1986 Act.

Timing of Publicity

43. Particular care should be taken when publicity is issued immediately prior to an election or
by-election affecting the authority's area to ensure that this could not be perceived as seeking
to influence public opinion, or to promote the public image of a particular candidate, or group of
candidates. Between the time of publication of a notice of an election and polling day, publicity
should not be issued which deals with controversial issues, or which reports views or policies
in a way that identifies them with individual members or groups of members.

Assistance to others for publicity

44. The principles set out above apply to decisions on publicity issued by local authorities.
They should also be taken into account by local authorities in decisions on assistance to others
to issue publicity. In all such decisions local authorities should, to the extent appropriate:

(a) incorporate the relevant principles of the Code in published guidance for
applicants for grants;

(b) make the observance of that guidance a condition of the grant or other
assistance;

73



(c) undertake monitoring to ensure that the guidance is observed.

45. It can be appropriate for local authorities to help charities and voluntary organisations by
arranging for pamphlets or other material produced and paid for by the organisation to be
available for collection by the public in public libraries and other suitable locations. Such
material should not offend against any legal provision, but (subject to this) any such facility
should be made available on a fair and equal basis.

74



DETR Circular 06/2001

Department of the Environment, Transport and the Regions
Eland House,Bressenden Place,London SW1E 5DU

2 April 2001

ALTERATIONS TO THE CODE OF RECOMMENDED PRACTICE ON LOCAL AUTHORITY
PUBLICITY

1. Section 4 of the Local Government Act 1986 provides for the Secretary of State to issue,
revise or withdraw a code of recommended practice as regards the content, style, distribution
and cost of local authority publicity, and such other related matters as he thinks appropriate.
Local authorities shall have regard to the provision of any such code in coming to any decision
on publicity.

2. Using these powers the Secretary of State for the Environment, the Secretary of State for
Scotland and the Secretary of State for Wales issued, on 15 August 1988, "The Code of
Recommended Practice on Local Authority Publicity" ("the Code") as an annex to a Joint
Circular from the Department of the Environment (20/88), the Scottish Development
Department (16/88) and the Welsh Office (30/88).

3. The Secretary of the State for the Environment, Transport and the Regions, in exercise of
his powers conferred on him by section 4(3) of the Local Government Act 1986 now revises
the Code to reflect changes in council constitutions and the advent of referendums and
petitions. I am directed by the Secretary of State to draw the attention of your authority to the
annexed alterations to the Code which shall apply to county councils, district councils and
London borough councils in England only.

4. In accordance with section 4(6) of the Local Government Act 1986, The Secretary of State
for the Environment, Transport and the Regions laid before each House of Parliament a draft
of proposed alterations to the Code on 15 February 2001.

5. The proposed alterations have been the subject of a consultation with the Local Government
Association in accordance with section 4(4) of the Local Government Act 1986.

P ROWSELL,
a Senior Civil Servant in the Department of the Environment, Transport and the Regions.

75



ANNEX

ALTERATIONS TO THE CODE OF RECOMMENDED PRACTICE ON LOCAL AUTHORITY
PUBLICITY, WHICH APPLY TO LOCAL AUTHORITIES IN ENGLAND ONLY

1. Insert after paragraph 9 of the Introduction to the Code of Recommended Practice on Local
Authority Publicity, dated 15 August 1988, ("the Code") the following:

"Alterations to the Code - local authorities in England

10. The alterations to the Code which are set out in Appendix 1 shall apply in
relation to county councils, district councils and London borough councils in
England only. The alterations reflect changes in council constitutions and the
advent of referendums and petitions. Throughout this Code, as it applies to such
local authorities in England, any reference to "councillor" includes, unless the
context requires otherwise, a reference to an elected mayor. The alterations shall
have effect on and after Monday 2nd April 2001.

2. Insert after paragraph 45 of the Code the following:

Appendix 1

Alterations to the Code which shall apply to county councils, district councils and London
borough councils in England only

Paragraph
of the
Code

Alteration to paragraph

4(iii) Omit paragraph 4(iii)

16 Insert after the word council,, the words

is unavoidable, particularly given the importance of wide
consultation whenever material issues arise. Such publicity

For the words It should, substitute the words

Issues must be presented clearly, fairly and as simply as
possible, although councils should

18 Insert after the words "for example,", the words -

"as part of consultation processes where local views are
being sought, or"

For the words "race relations", substitute "equal
opportunities"

20

76



Insert after the word "performs;", the words -

"to allow local people to have a real and informed say about
issues that affect them;"

23 After the word "leaflets," , omit the word "and"

Insert after the words "house to house" , the words -

"and information on websites"

For the words "inevitably more intrusive", substitute the
words -

"able to reach far wider audiences"

Insert after the word "council." , the words -

"Councils should give particular consideration to the use of
electronic and other new media communication systems.
However, councils should ensure that they do not rely solely
on such mechanisms and that they do not exclude those
without access or easy access to such systems."

24 & 25 For both paragraphs substitute -

"24. Such publicity should be targeted as appropriate for its
purposes, taking particular care with material touching on
politically controversial issues."

26 For the words ", but they may touch on controversial issues.
If", substitute the words -

"or facilitating consultation and can provide a means for local
people to participate in debate on decisions the council is to
take. The advantage of using websites and other information
technology for consultations should also be considered.
Inevitably such publications will touch on controversial issues
and where"

27 Insert after the words "voluntary organisations", the words -

", and making use of electronic communication systems"

28 For the words "tourism, and in the area of economic
development generally" substitute the words -

"promoting the social, economic and environmental well-
being of the area"

39-43 For paragraphs 39 to 43, and the headings to those
paragraphs, substitute -

"Individual Councillors

77



39. Publicity about individual councillors may include the
contact details, the positions they hold in the Council (for
example, member of the Executive or Chair of Overview and
Scrutiny Committee), and their responsibilities. Publicity may
also include information about individual councillors'
proposals, decisions and recommendations only where this
is relevant to their position and responsibilities within the
Council. All such publicity should be objective and
explanatory, and whilst it may acknowledge the part played
by individual councillors as holders of particular positions in
the Council, personalisation of issues or personal image
making should be avoided.

40. Publicity should not be, or liable to misrepresentation as
being, party political. Whilst it may be appropriate to describe
policies put forward by an individual councillor which are
relevant to her/his position and responsibilities within the
Council, and to put forward her/his justification in defence of
them, this should not be done in party political terms, using
political slogans, expressly advocating policies of those of a
particular political party or directly attacking policies and
opinions of other parties, groups or individuals.

Elections,referendums and petitions

41. The period between the notice of an election and the
election itself should preclude proactive publicity in all its
forms of candidates and other politicians involved directly in
the election. Publicity should not deal with controversial
issues or report views, proposals or recommendations in
such a way that identifies them with individual members or
groups of members. However, it is acceptable for the
authority to respond in appropriate circumstances to events
and legitimate service enquiries provided that their answers
are factual and not party political. Members holding key
political or civic positions should be able to comment in an
emergency or where there is a genuine need for a member
level response to an important event outside the authority's
control. Proactive events arranged in this period should not
involve members likely to be standing for election.

42. The Local Authorities (Referendums) (Petitions and
Directions) (England) Regulations 2000 (which apply under
the Local Government Act 2000 to county councils, district
councils and London borough councils) prohibit an authority
from incurring any expenditure to

Publish material which appears designed to influence

78



local people in deciding whether or not to sign a petition
requesting a referendum on proposals for an elected
mayor;
Assist anyone else in publishing such material; or
Influence or assist others to influence local people in
deciding whether or not to sign a petition.

Publicity in these circumstances should, therefore, be
restricted to the publication of factual details which are
presented fairly about the petition proposition and to
explaining the council's existing arrangements. Local
authorities should not mount publicity campaigns whose
primary purpose is to persuade the public to hold a particular
view in relation to petitions generally or on a specific
proposal.

43. County councils, district councils and London borough
councils should ensure that any publicity about a referendum
under Part II of the Local Government Act 2000 (the 2000
Act) either prior to or during the referendum period is
factually accurate and objective. The referendum period
means the period beginning with the date on which
proposals under Part II of the 2000 Act are sent to the
Secretary of State and ending with the date of the
referendum. The publicity should not be capable of being
perceived as seeking to influence public support for, or
opposition to, the referendum proposals and should not
associate support for, or opposition to, the proposals with
any individual or group. Local authorities must conform with
any specific restrictions on publicity activities which are
required by Regulations under section 45 of the 2000 Act."

45 For the words "can be ", substitute the word "is"

After the words "legal provision", insert the words -

"(authorities may be able to draw on their powers of well-
being in section 2 of the Local Government Act 2000)"

79



CODE OF RECOMMENDED PRACTICE

Subject matter

1. Local authorities have a variety of statutory powers which enable them to produce publicity
and circulate it widely, or to assist others to do so. Those commonly used include the powers
in sections 111, 142, 144 and 145 of the Local Government Act 1972, sections 69, 88 and 90
of the Local Government (Scotland) Act 1973 and sections 15 and 16 of the Local Government
and Planning (Scotland) Act 1982; but there are several others.

2. Some of these powers relate directly to the publishing authority's functions. Others give a
more general discretion to publicise matters which go beyond an authority's primary
responsibilities. For example, section 142(1A) of the 1972 Act and 88(1) of the 1973 Act
authorise local authorities to arrange for the publication within their area of information as to
the services available in the area provided by them or by other local authorities; and Section 54
of the Public Health (Control of Disease) Act 1984 empowers local authorities to arrange for
the publication within their area of information on questions relating to health or disease.

3. This discretion provides an important degree of flexibility, but also heightens the need for a
responsible approach to expenditure decisions.

4. In considering the subject areas in which publicity is to be issued, the following matters will
be important:

(i) the publicity should be relevant to the functions of the authority.
(ii) it should not duplicate unnecessarily publicity produced by central government,
another local authority or another public authority.

Costs

5. Local authorities are accountable to the public for the efficiency and effectiveness of their
expenditure, in the first instance through the audit arrangements.

6. For publicity, as for all other expenditure, the aim should therefore be to achieve the greatest
possible cost-effectiveness.

7. To achieve this, there may well be cases where the benefit of higher expenditure to gain
better presentation or improve other aspects of publicity will justify the extra cost.

8. Local authorities should therefore always have in mind the extent to which expert advice is
needed for publicity.

9. In some cases publicity may justify its cost by virtue of savings which it achieves. More
commonly it will be necessary to take a view of the importance of the unquantifiable benefits as

80



compared with other uses to which the resources could be put.

10. In deciding whether the nature and scale of proposed publicity, and consequently its cost,
are justified, the following matters will be relevant:

(i) whether the publicity is statutorily required or is discretionary.
(ii) where it is statutorily required, the purpose to be served by the publicity.
(iii)whether the expenditure envisaged is in keeping with the purpose and expected
effect of the publicity.

Content and Style

11. Local authorities produce a variety of publicity material. It ranges from factual information
about the services provided by the authority, designed to inform clients or attract new ones, to
material necessary to the administration of the authority, such as staff recruitment advertising.
There will also be publicity to explain or justify the council's policies either in general, as in the
annual report, or on specific topics, for example as background to consultation on the line
chosen for a new road.

12. Any publicity describing the council's policies and aims should be as objective as possible,
concentrating on facts or explanation or both.

13. Where publicity is used to comment on, or respond to, the policies and proposals of central
government, other local authorities or other public authorities, the comment or response should
be objective, balanced, informative, and accurate. It should aim to set out the reasons for the
council's views, and should not be a prejudiced, unreasoning or political attack on the policies
or proposals in question or on those putting them forward. Slogans alone will not be an
adequate means of justifying or explaining the authority's views or their policy decisions.

14. Publicity relating to the provision of a service should concentrate on providing factual
information about the service.

15. In some cases promotional publicity may be appropriate - for example about the local
authority's sports and leisure facilities or about tourist attractions.

16. Publicity touching on issues that are controversial, or on which there are arguments for and
against the views or policies of the council, is unavoidable, particularly given the importance of
wide consultation whenever material issues arise. Such publicity should be handled with
particular care. Issues must be presented clearly, fairly and as simply as possible, although
councils should not over-simplify facts, issues or arguments. Again, it is unlikely that slogans
alone will achieve the necessary degree of balance, or capture the complexities of opposing
political arguments.

17. Publicity should not attack, nor appear to undermine, generally accepted moral standards.

18. Publicity campaigns by local authorities are appropriate in some circumstances: for
example, as part of consultation processes where local views are being sought, or to promote
the effective and efficient use of local services and facilities, or to attract tourists or investment.

81



Publicity campaigns may also be an appropriate means of influencing public behaviour or
attitudes on such matters as health, safety, crime prevention or equal opportunities.

19. Legitimate concern is, however, caused by the use of public resources for some forms of
campaigns, which are designed to have a persuasive effect. Publicity campaigns can provide
an appropriate means of ensuring that the local community is properly informed about a matter
relating to a function of the local authority and about the authority's policies in relation to that
function and the reasons for them. But local authorities, like other public authorities, should not
use public funds to mount publicity campaigns whose primary purpose is to persuade the
public to hold a particular view on a question of policy.

Dissemination

20. The main purposes of local authority publicity are to increase public awareness of the
services provided by the authority and the functions it performs; to allow local people to have a
real and informed say about issues that affect them; to explain to electors and ratepayers the
reasons for particular policies and priorities; and in general to improve local accountability.

21. Information and publicity produced by the council should be made available to all those
who want or need it. Local authorities should not discriminate in favour of, or against, persons
or groups in the compilation and distribution of material for reasons not connected with the
efficiency and effectiveness of issuing the publicity.

22. Where material is distributed on matters closely affecting vulnerable sections of the
community - for example, the elderly - particular care should be taken to ensure that it is
unambiguous, readily intelligible, and unlikely to cause needless concern to those reading,
seeing or listening to it.

23. Local authority newspapers, leaflets, other publicity distributed unsolicited from house to
house and information on websites are able to reach far wider audiences than publicity
available on application to the council. Councils should give particular consideration to the use
of electronic and other new media communication systems. However, councils should ensure
that they do not rely solely on such mechanisms and that they do not exclude those without
access or easy access to such systems.

24. Such publicity should be targeted as appropriate for its purposes, taking particular care
with material touching on politically controversial issues.

25. there is no paragraph 25

26. Local authority newspapers or information bulletins are a special case. They are often a
cost-effective means of disseminating information, or facilitating consultation and can provide a
means for local people to participate in debate on decisions the council is to take. The
advantage of using websites and other information technology for consultations should also be
considered. Inevitably such publications will touch on controversial issues and where they do
they should treat such issues in an objective and informative way, bearing in mind the
principles set out in paragraphs 11-19 of the Code.

82



27. Where it is important for information to reach a particular target audience, consideration
should be given to using the communications networks of other bodies, for example those of
voluntary organisations, and making use of electronic communication systems.

Advertising

28. Advertising, especially on billboards or on television and radio, is a highly intrusive
medium. It can also be expensive. It may however provide a cost-effective, efficient means of
conveying public information to the widest possible audience. Advertising on local radio
networks has, for example, been used as a relatively inexpensive means of telling potential
clients about local authority services. Advertising can also be the most cost-effective means of
publicising a local authority's activities on promoting the social, economic and environmental
well-being of the area.

29. The primary criterion for decisions on whether to use advertising should be cost-
effectiveness.

30. Advertisements are not normally likely to be appropriate as a means of explaining policy or
commenting on proposals, since an advertisement by its nature summarises information,
compresses issues and arguments, and markets views and opinions.

31. Advertising in media which cover an area significantly wider than that of the authority is not
likely to be an appropriate means of conveying information about a local authority's polices as
opposed to attracting people to the authority's area or to use its facilities.

32. The attribution of advertising material leaflets and other forms of publicity that reach the
public unsolicited should be clearly set out.

33. It is not acceptable, in terms of public accountability, to use the purchase of advertising
space as a disguised means of subsidy to a voluntary, industrial or commercial organisation.
Such support should be given openly through the normal grant arrangements. However, the
conditions attached to a grant may require the provision of publicity, including publicity for the
work of the authority.

34. Any decision to take advertising space in a publication produced by a voluntary, industrial
or commercial organisation should be made only on the grounds that it provides an effective
and efficient means of securing the desired publicity.

35. Local authorities should never use advertising as a means of giving financial support to any
publication associated with a political party.

Recruitment Advertising

36. Local authorities have respected in their staff employment policies the tradition of a
politically impartial public service. Their recruitment publicity should reflect this tradition, and
the fact that local authority staff are expected to serve the authority as a whole, whatever its

83



composition from time to time.

37. The content of recruitment publicity and the media chosen for advertising job vacancies
should be in keeping with the objective of maintaining the politically independent status of local
authority staff.

38. Advertisements for staff should not be placed in party political publications.

Individual Councillors

39. Publicity about individual councillors may include the contact details, the positions they
hold in the Council (for example, member of the Executive or Chair of Overview and Scrutiny
Committee), and their responsibilities. Publicity may also include information about individual
councillors' proposals, decisions and recommendations only where this is relevant to their
position and responsibilities within the Council. All such publicity should be objective and
explanatory, and whilst it may acknowledge the part played by individual councillors as holders
of particular positions in the Council, personalisation of issues or personal image making
should be avoided.

40. Publicity should not be, or liable to misrepresentation as being, party political. Whilst it may
be appropriate to describe policies put forward by an individual councillor which are relevant to
her/his position and responsibilities within the Council, and to put forward her/his justification in
defence of them, this should not be done in party political terms, using political slogans,
expressly advocating policies of those of a particular political party or directly attacking policies
and opinions of other parties, groups or individuals.

Elections, referendums and petitions

41. The period between the notice of an election and the election itself should preclude
proactive publicity in all its forms of candidates and other politicians involved directly in the
election. Publicity should not deal with controversial issues or report views, proposals or
recommendations in such a way that identifies them with individual members or groups of
members. However, it is acceptable for the authority to respond in appropriate circumstances
to events and legitimate service enquiries provided that their answers are factual and not party
political. Members holding key political or civic positions should be able to comment in an
emergency or where there is a genuine need for a member level response to an important
event outside the authority's control. Proactive events arranged in this period should not
involve members likely to be standing for election.

42. The Local Authorities (Referendums) (Petitions and Directions) (England) Regulations
2000 (which apply under the Local Government Act 2000 to county councils, district councils
and London borough councils) prohibit an authority from incurring any expenditure to

Publish material which appears designed to influence local people in deciding whether or
not to sign a petition requesting a referendum on proposals for an elected mayor;
Assist anyone else in publishing such material; or

84



Influence or assist others to influence local people in deciding whether or not to sign a
petition.

Publicity in these circumstances should, therefore, be restricted to the publication of factual
details which are presented fairly about the petition proposition and to explaining the council's
existing arrangements. Local authorities should not mount publicity campaigns whose primary
purpose is to persuade the public to hold a particular view in relation to petitions generally or
on a specific proposal.

43. County councils, district councils and London borough councils should ensure that any
publicity about a referendum under Part II of the Local Government Act 2000 (the 2000 Act)
either prior to or during the referendum period is factually accurate and objective. The
referendum period means the period beginning with the date on which proposals under Part II
of the 2000 Act are sent to the Secretary of State and ending with the date of the referendum.
The publicity should not be capable of being perceived as seeking to influence public support
for, or opposition to, the referendum proposals and should not associate support for, or
opposition to, the proposals with any individual or group. Local authorities must conform with
any specific restrictions on publicity activities which are required by Regulations under section
45 of the 2000 Act.

Assistance to others for publicity

44. The principles set out above apply to decisions on publicity issued by local authorities.
They should also be taken into account by local authorities in decisions on assistance to others
to issue publicity. In all such decisions local authorities should, to the extent appropriate:

(a) incorporate the relevant principles of the Code in published guidance for
applicants for grants;
(b) make the observance of that guidance a condition of the grant or other
assistance;
(c) undertake monitoring to ensure that the guidance is observed.

45. It is appropriate for local authorities to help charities and voluntary organisations by
arranging for pamphlets or other material produced and paid for by the organisation to be
available for collection by the public in public libraries and other suitable locations. Such
material should not offend against any legal provision, (authorities may be able to draw on their
powers of well-being in section 2 of the Local Government Act 2000) but (subject to this) any
such facility should be made available on a fair and equal basis.

85



86



THE
BULLETIN

Welcome to Issue 33 of the Bulletin.

The new Code of Conduct has now come into force and we
would urge authorities to adopt it at the earliest opportunity.
The Standards Board for England welcomes this new Code,
which addresses issues that emerged during the consultation
process. We believe that it is now clearer and simpler to
understand and that it will allow members to properly
represent their constituents on matters that concern them.

Standards committees have a responsibility for ensuring that
members within their area receive appropriate training on the
new Code, so that they fully understand their obligations. This
is an important function for them and an opportunity for
authorities to demonstrate their commitment to high
standards of probity and governance.

The Standards Board has published comprehensive
guidance on the new Code on our website at
www.standardsboard.gov.uk

Monitoring officers will also receive hard copies of the
guidance soon. We will be producing a range of training
materials, available from our website shortly, and a DVD
which will be distributed in July.

The forthcoming roadshows being held around the country in
June will provide an opportunity for us to find out your early
views on the new Code and emerging themes. If you have
not already booked your place on these roadshows, I would
encourage you to do so soon as places are being filled
quickly. Please visit our website or email
roadshow2007@standardsboard.gov.uk for further details.

David Prince
Chief Executive

May 2007

Contents

Page 2
The new Code of Conduct

Page 3
Adopting and amending the
new Code of Conduct

Advertising the new Model
Code

Page 4
Special advice for parish and
town councils

Page 5
Local investigations – update

Research findings

Roadshow and Annual
Assembly news

Page 6
Relocation and contact
details

New director of casework and
head of legal services

Page 7
Statistics

Contact
Enquiries line: 0845 078 8181
www.standardsboard.gov.uk
email: bulletin@standardsboard.gov.uk

#
33

AGENDA ITEM 7

87



2 THE BULLETIN #33

The new Code of Conduct

The revised Model Code of Conduct came
into force on 3 May 2007. Authorities have
until 1 October 2007 to adopt the Code
formally. If an authority fails to adopt the Code
before that date, the mandatory provisions of
the Code will apply until the authority adopts
its own Code.

There are a number of major changes to the
Code and these are summarised below:

� The definition of a personal interest has

been relaxed. Interests that are shared with

most people in the ward or electoral

division affected by the decision will not

have to be declared. However, the

definition will not change for many parishes

or other authorities that do not have wards

or electoral divisions.

� Dual-hatted members and those members

appointed or nominated by the authority to

outside bodies will also benefit from

changes to the rules regarding declaration

of interests. Where a matter that affects the

other body is being discussed at a meeting

of the authority, these members will not be

required to declare that they have a

personal interest in the matter before they

vote, unless they wish to speak on the

matter or where the personal interest is

also a prejudicial interest.

� Prejudicial interests now only arise if a

matter affects a member, their family, or

their close associates in the following

ways:

� it relates to their finances or

� it concerns regulatory functions such

as licensing or planning which affect

them

� and a reasonable member of the

public with knowledge of the facts

would believe their ability to judge the

public interest would be impaired.

Even where members have a prejudicial
interest, the Code supports their role as a
community advocate and enables them, in
certain circumstances, to represent the
community and to speak on issues
important to it and to the member.
Paragraph 12(2) of the Code gives
members with a prejudicial interest in a
matter the same rights as members of the
public to speak to a meeting on the matter.
However, once they have done so, the
member must immediately leave the
meeting room, as currently required, and
cannot remain in the public gallery to
observe the vote on the matter.

� Gifts or hospitality over the value of £25

must now be included in the member’s

register of interests. This means that a

personal interest must be declared at any

meeting where a matter relating to that

interest is discussed.

� The unlawful discrimination provision

has been replaced by a duty not to do

anything that may cause the authority to

breach its statutory duties under equality

laws (including anti-discrimination laws).

As a result, discriminatory behaviour can

now be dealt with through the Code.

� A new provision makes it clear that

bullying is prohibited by the Code.

� Another new provision states that members

must not intimidate or attempt to

intimidate anyone involved in an

investigation, such as a complainant, a

witness or an officer involved in the

conduct of an investigation.

� The Code does not incorporate the Ten

General Principles of Public Life but

88



3 THE BULLETIN #33

members are required to read the Code

together with these general principles.

Although members are not legally obliged

to observe the principles, a failure to follow

them may indicate behaviour that could

potentially breach the Code.

� Subject to the enactment of the Local

Government and Public Involvement in

Health Bill, the Code will apply where

criminal activity has been committed in a

private capacity, but not in relation to other

conduct which solely concerns a member’s

private life.

� The ban on disclosing confidential

information has been relaxed to allow

disclosure of confidential information

where:

� the disclosure is made to a third party

for the purpose of obtaining

professional advice (provided that

person agrees not to disclose it)

� the disclosure is reasonable and in the

public interest, made in good faith, and

does not breach the reasonable

requirements of the authority

The Standards Board’s comprehensive

guidance on the new Code of Conduct is

available on our website at

www.standardsboard.gov.uk

We will be sending printed copies of the
guidance to all monitoring officers and parish
clerks soon.

Adopting and amending the new Code of
Conduct

The new Code of Conduct applies to the
same range of authorities covered by the
existing Code. However, only one composite
Code has been made for different types of
authorities. As a result, some paragraphs are

not mandatory for your authority, and
particular wording within mandatory
paragraphs may not be relevant to your
authority. For example, some paragraphs
refer specifically to executive arrangements
and overview and scrutiny which parishes do
not have, while other paragraphs expressly
apply only to the Greater London Authority or
Metropolitan Police Authority.

Councils may adopt a version of the Model
Code that excludes non-mandatory provisions
or wording that is not relevant to the particular
authority, so long as it is consistent with the
application of the mandatory provisions to
that relevant authority. To avoid confusion and
ensure consistency, we recommend that any
amendments do not affect the subsequent
numbering of paragraphs. To assist parish
and town councils, we have prepared a
‘Model Code of Conduct for Parish and Town
Councils’ which is available from our website.

If your authority simply adopts the Model
Code, this means that it does not adopt the
non-mandatory paragraphs for that authority.
For example, paragraph 12(2) is not
mandatory for parish and town councils,
English and Welsh police authorities, the
Greater London Authority, national park
authorities, and fire and rescue authorities.
Therefore, if these types of authorities wish to
adopt paragraph 12(2), they will need to do
so expressly. See also the article on page 4
Special advice for parish and town councils
adopting the new Code of Conduct.

Advertising the new Model Code

As soon as your authority has adopted a
revised Code of Conduct, it must send
notification to the Standards Board and make
copies available for inspection by the public.
It must also publish a notice in a local
newspaper, stating that the council has
adopted a revised Code. The authority can
also publish the notice in its own newspaper,
if it has one, but this cannot be the only notice
that is published.

89



4 THE BULLETIN #33

This duty to publish a notice will again be
relevant when the Model Code comes into
effect. When the previous Code was
introduced, some unitary and district councils
organised combined notices for councils in
their area. This can save money, especially
where there are a large number of parish
councils.

To enable a monitoring officer to coordinate a
combined notice, parish clerks will need to
ensure their councils adopt the revised Code
quickly and confirm to the monitoring officer
where copies of the Code can be inspected
within the parish. This information can then be
fed into the notice published in the
newspaper.

If you are a local authority, the easiest way to
notify the Standards Board of your adoption
of the Code is to send an email to Kimberley
Connell in our Policy and Guidance team at
enquiries@standardsboard.gov.uk.

Special advice for parish and town
councils adopting the new Code of
Conduct

Parish and town councils can maximise their
ability to exercise democratic rights under the
new Code of Conduct by taking certain
actions.

A new paragraph 12(2) gives elected
members with a prejudicial interest the same
rights as members of the public to speak to a
meeting on the issue, but then leave before
the main discussion and vote. This part of the
revised Code does not automatically apply to
parish and town councils.

It is not enough, therefore, for parishes to
simply adopt the Model Code “as applicable
to parish councils” _ paragraph 12(2) is not
mandatory for parishes. In order to take
advantage of the amendment, parish councils
will need to pass a resolution adopting the
Model Code of Conduct including paragraph
12(2).

Each parish and town council wanting to take
advantage of this provision should notify the
Standards Board of the resolution passed and
the date on which it was passed. This
information can be sent electronically to
Kimberley Connell in our Policy and Guidance
team at enquiries@standardsboard.gov.uk.

We recommend: “to adopt the Model Code of
Conduct for Members including paragraph
12(2), effective [insert ‘immediately’ or
‘specific date’]”.

The Standards Board also recommends that
parishes should consider having standing
orders in place to allow members of the
public to attend meetings of the authority for
the purpose of making representations, giving
evidence or answering questions.

The revised Code gives councillors the same
rights to speak as members of the public, but
if an authority’s standing orders or procedural
rules do not provide members of the public
with these rights, or if an authority has no
standing orders in place at all, paragraph
12(2) will have no effect.

This means that councillors with a prejudicial
interest would have to leave a meeting after
declaring the nature and extent of their
interest, just as they have had to under the
old Code of Conduct. They will not be able to
take advantage of the freedom offered by the
new Code to allow members with a prejudicial
interest to speak in certain circumstances.

The Standards Board has prepared a ‘Model
Code for Parish and Town Councils’ which is
available from our website. It has been
created to assist parish and town councils in
adopting the relevant mandatory paragraphs
and the ‘voluntary’ paragraph 12(2), while
excluding paragraphs that are not relevant to
parishes.

We urge monitoring officers to bring the
above information to the attention of parish
clerks.

90



5 THE BULLETIN #33

Local investigations – update

There has been positive feedback to a
number of changes to our criteria for referring
investigations back to monitoring officers for
local investigation:

� We now retain complaints for investigations

where the allegation, if proven, would

undoubtedly warrant the Adjudication

Panel for England’s penalties.

� We assess allegations against executive

members on a case-by-case basis to

decide if they should be investigated

locally, and do not automatically retain

such cases.

� We do not normally retain cases where a

monitoring officer has a conflict of interest.

We assume that an investigation can be

delegated, outsourced or undertaken by a

monitoring officer from another authority,

but ethical standards officers exercise their

discretion, especially in relation to

monitoring officers from smaller authorities.

The Standards Board now has a local
investigations co-ordinator who liaises with
monitoring officers and other parties about
the allocation and monitoring of local
investigations. They can be contacted at
local.investigationenquiries@standardsboard.gov.uk

or on 0161 817 5372

Research findings

Thank you to those who returned
questionnaires on the research undertaken by
BMG Research entitled ‘Study into the
operation and role of standards committees
within local authorities’. This research has
now been completed and the full report can
be found on our website at:

www.standardsboard.gov.uk/Aboutus/Research

The research is a survey of monitoring

officers and standards committees and has
increased our understanding of your
activities, the resources available to you, the
challenges you face and the support you may
need in the future.

Delegates quick to sign up to roadshows

Bookings for the summer roadshow events
have been flooding in over the past month,
with several venues nearly fully booked. The
London event on 28 June has proved so
popular that a second roadshow will be run in
the morning at 10.00am, in addition to the one
taking place in the afternoon.

There are still some places available for the
roadshows, which are taking place at 11
venues across the country and are aimed at
monitoring officers and standards committee
members. For further details on when and
where visit:

www.standardsboard.gov.uk/Events

To book a place on the earlier London
roadshow or any of the other events please
contact our event managers, Benedict
Business Resources, on 01483 205 432 or
email roadshow2007@standardsboard.gov.uk

Annual Assembly – Down to detail: Making
local regulation work

We have already received a significant
number of bookings for the Sixth Annual
Assembly of Standards Committees in
October, with over 400 delegates signed up
to attend.

Phil Woolas MP, Minister for Local
Government and Community Cohesion, will
open the conference by outlining how to meet
the challenges of the local filter system and
the revised Code of Conduct. He will also set
out the government’s focus for the future.

There will be over 25 sessions covering
issues such as the process and practice of
managing the local filter, and a focus on

91



6 THE BULLETIN #33

helping delegates to develop the skills and
knowledge they need to deliver high
standards of effective local governance.

Several sessions will address vital issues
linked to managing the wider impact of the
local filter and the revised Code. These will
include training and hands-on workshops to
help delegates focus on raising their
authorities’ standards to an even higher level.
There will also be sessions on how to improve
communication with stakeholders and
confidently deliver effective local regulation.

An advanced copy of the conference
programme is available at
www.annualassembly.co.uk/Programme/

To book a place at the conference please
contact our event managers, Benedict
Business Resources, on 01483 205 432 or
email
annualassembly2007@standardsboard.gov.uk

Relocation and new contact details

The Standards Board has completed the key
stage of our relocation from our offices in
London to our new premises in Manchester.
Our new details can be found below:

Fourth Floor
Griffin House
40 Lever Street
Manchester M1 1BB

Telephone: 0161 817 5300 (main switchboard)

Facsimile: 0161 817 5499

Web address: www.standardsboard.gov.uk

New director of casework and head of legal
services

We are pleased to announce that two new
heads of department have been appointed to
oversee our Investigations and Legal Services
teams.

Hazel Salisbury was appointed as the new
director of casework in February.

Hazel brings with her a wealth of professional
experience and a strong background in local
government. She was admitted as a solicitor
in 1987, and was later head of legal services
and monitoring officer for Nottinghamshire
County Council. Hazel also spent two years
on secondment as monitoring officer at
Lincolnshire County Council

Most recently, Hazel worked as a consultant
in a private practice, providing member and
monitoring officer training for local authorities.

Sara Goodwin took up the position of head of
legal services earlier this month.

Sara was a lecturer in law at Leeds
Metropolitan University for two years. She
spent 12 years in the local government sector
and is a former head of legal services and
monitoring officer.

Most recently Sara worked as a consultant for
SOLACE (the Society of Local Authority Chief
Executives) providing support and monitoring
officer training for local authorities.

Sir Anthony Holland, chair of the Standards
Board said:

“We welcome both Hazel and Sara to the
organisation. The Standards Board will benefit
from the experience and knowledge that they
have both have gathered over the many years
they have spent working closely with local
government. They will have an important role
to play in establishing the new teams in
Manchester and meeting the challenges
ahead.”

92



Referral and investigation statistics

The Standards Board for England received

3549 allegations between 1 April 2006 and 31

March 2007, compared to 3836 during the

same period in 2005/2006.

The following charts show referral and

investigation statistics during the above

dates.

Local investigation statistics

Of all cases referred since April 2006 for local

investigation we have received a total of 546

reports — please see below for a statistical

breakdown of these cases. (NB: for the

period 1 April - 31 March 2007, ethical

standards officers referred 347 cases for local

investigation — equivalent to 55% of all cases

referred for investigation. Since 1 April 2006

there have been 18 appeals to the

Adjudication Panel for England following

standards committee hearings.)

7 THE BULLETIN #33

Source of allegations received

Authority of subject member in allegations referred for

investigation

Allegations referred for investigation

Final findings

Standards committee determinations

Nature of allegations referred for investigation

councillors (31%)

council officers (5%)

members of

public (62%)

other (2%)

not referred (81%)

referred (19%)

county council (4%)

district council (28%)

unitary council (11%)

London borough (4%)

metropolitan (10%)

parish/

town

council (42%)

other (1%)

bringing authority into
disrepute (24%)

other (12%)

disclosure of confidential
information (4%)

failure to disclose a
personal interest (11%)

prejudicial interest (25%)

failure to treat others with
respect (12%)

using position to confer or
secure an advantage or
disadvantage (12%)

no evidence of a breach (39%)

referred to monitoring officer

for local determination (4%)

no further

action (54%)

referred to the Adjudication

Panel for England (3%)

no sanction – 26

censure – 21

apology – 15

training – 22

mediation – 0.33

one month suspension – 4

two-week suspension – 0.67

six-week suspension – 2

two-month suspension – 4

three-month suspension – 5

Monitoring officers’ recommendations following

local investigations

Standards Committee hearings

no breach

(264 reports) breach

(285 reports)

no breach

(243 reports)
breach

(238 reports)

93



94



AGENDA ITEM 9

95

Document is Restricted



96



97

Document is Restricted



98



AGENDA ITEM 10

99

Document is Restricted



102


